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M&C SAATCHI PLC
(the "Company" or "M&C Saatchi")

Audited Results for the Year Ended 31 December 2022
 
The Company today announces its audited results for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company has
delivered another year of record results with its highest ever net revenue, Headline operating profit, Headline profit
before tax and Headline earnings.
Highlights

·     Record 2022 net revenue of £271.1m, growth of 8.7% versus 2021.
·     Record 2022 Headline profit before tax of £31.8m (2021: £27.3m).
·     Results underpinned by strong growth in the Issues, Consulting and Passions specialisms,

and central cost savings.
·     2022 Statutory profit before tax of £5.4m (2021: £21.6m), adversely affected predominantly by

£10.8m of one-off defence costs relating to the failed takeover bids for the Company.
·     2022 Headline operating profit margin improved to 13.1% (2021: 12.5%).
·     Strong net operating cashflow generation of £42.2m, with cash conversion of 99%.
·     Net cash of £30.0m (2021: £34.4m) after paying for put options and one-off defence costs

relating to the takeover bids. Borrowings reduced to £7m (2021: £20m).
·     Reinstated dividend payments with a recommended final dividend of 1.5 pence per share. 
·     New wins include: Diageo, Tinder, LVMH, PepsiCo, UK Covid-19 Inquiry account and

Australia Retirement Trust and being appointed to the Emirates Airline, Samsung, and
Volkswagen global rosters.

·     Good momentum in recently launched consultancies in the sustainability, data analytics and
digital innovation sectors.

·     Completed Phase 1 of a global efficiency programme with material cost savings identified.
·     Planet commitments launched, targets validated by Science Based Targets initiative.

 
Financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022

       

 Headline *  Statutory
£m 2022 2021 Movement  2022 2021 Movement
Billings** 597.5 533.4 12.0% - - -
Revenue 462.5 394.6 17.2% 462.5 394.6 17.2%
Net revenue** 271.1 249.3 8.7% - - -
EBITDA** 45.2 40.8 10.8% - - -
Operating profit 35.4 31.1 13.8% 10.5 27.3 -61.5%
Profit before taxation 31.8 27.3 16.5% 5.4 21.6 -75.0%
Profit for the year 24.0 20.0 20.5% 0.2 13.2 -98.5%
Earnings*** 18.1 13.7 32.8% 0.1 12.8 -99.2%
Earnings per share 14.9p 11.3p 31.9% 0.1p 10.5p -99.3%
Tax rate 24.5% 26.6% -2.1pts 95.5% 39.1% +56.4pts

 
* Headline results represent the underlying trading profitability of the group and exclude:

•   Separately disclosed items that are one-off in nature and are not part of running the business.
•   Acquisition-related costs (including amortisation of acquired intangibles and impairment of goodwill).
•   Gains or losses generated by disposals of subsidiaries and associates.
•   Fair value adjustments to unlisted equity investments, acquisition related contingent consideration and put options.
•   Dividends paid to IFRS 2 put option holders.

Although our peers may use these same terms, they are not necessarily calculated on the same basis. However, as measures of Headline
performance, they have been included to better assess the underlying performance of the business and to enable better comparability
both across the industry and when comparing year-on-year results.

** Billings, net revenue and EBITDA excluded from Statutory results as these are not IFRS terms.

*** Earnings are calculated after deducting share of profits attributable to non-controlling interests.

Current trading and outlook
The Company expects Headline profit before tax for 2023 to be in line with market expectations of £36.5m-£38.0m,
representing a 15-19% increase on the record profits of 2022.
Along with the wider market, we have seen some impact in the year to date from the headwinds in the technology
sector, particularly in our Media specialism. However, we continue to see the benefit of our diverse range of
businesses with strong pipelines in the Consulting, Issues and Passions specialisms, which gives us confidence for
the remainder of the year. In addition, the cost efficiency programme is expected to deliver savings in the second half
of 2023. Consequently, profit will be more weighted to the second half of 2023, than in 2022.
 
Commenting on the 2022 performance and outlook, Moray MacLennan, Chief Executive Officer said:
"Another year of record results, in a year not without challenges. Through a relentless focus on developing core
capabilities both within and beyond advertising, alongside careful cost management, we have delivered high-margin
and high-revenue growth and are pleased to reinstate dividend payments.



We approach 2023 with guarded optimism. Whilst macroeconomic uncertainties will require careful navigation and
management, we have a clear roadmap in place and look forward to building on our solid foundations for profitable
growth."
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Chief Executive Statement

 

2022 was another record year. Unexpected events  were met with remarkable res i l ience and remarkable profitabi l i ty.
Growth was achieved in spite of obstacles .

I n 2020 we stabi l i sed the Company and la id the founda ons for future success . I n 2021 we gained momentum. I n 2022 our
record net revenue, Headl ine opera ng profit, Headl ine profit before tax and Headl ine earnings  demonstrated the extent of
the turnaround.

Targets  were set at the Capital  Markets  Day in 2021, and al l  of our 2022 targets  were surpassed. Between 2020 and 2022
we del ivered net revenue C AGR of 10%, Headl ine opera ng profit C AGR of 71% and an opera ng margin improvement from
5% to 13%.  As  a  result, at the Capital  Markets  Day in February 2023, the Company set out new five-year growth targets  to
2027.

This  performance is  due to our people. They del iver the award-winning work and the revenue day-in, day-out.

O n new business , we were appointed to the Emirates  Airl ine, Samsung and Volkswagen global  rosters . We won the UK
Covid-19 I nquiry account, Austral ia  Re rement Trust, a  new global  ass ignment from Diageo, and Va9enfal l , one of the
world's  leading sustainable energy companies .

New cl ient offers  were launched in four areas: data analytics , sustainabi l i ty, digi ta l  innovation and B2B SaaS.

We completed the first phase of our global  efficiency programme which wi l l  result in further s impl ifica on of our
operating model  global ly and start del ivering cost savings  in the second hal f of 2023.

And al l  of this  with a  successful  defence against the two fai led takeover bids .

 

Strategy

At our Capital  Markets  Day this  year, we announced our ambi on to be the world's  leading crea ve solu ons company, of
special is t expertise, connected through data and tech, to del iver meaningful  change.
 
Our strategy wi l l  focus  on high-margin organic growth, improved efficiency, further s impl i fication and M&A.
 
This  includes  investment in key capabi l i es , focus ing on data, digi ta l  transforma on and C X , across  our high-margin
businesses , increased produc sa on within a l l  specia l isms, expansion into geographic growth markets , and development
of a  new media proposition.
 
We ini ated a global  efficiency programme in the last quarter of 2022, with cost savings  and margin improvements
expected to be del ivered from the second hal f of 2023, and on an ongoing bas is  thereafter.
 
The focus  on s impl ifica on also involves  streaml ining the opera ng model  and reducing both legal  and opera ng en  es
in 2023 and 2024.
 
We wi l l  pursue selective bolt-on M&A opportunities  to further strengthen our market proposition.
 

Specialism performance

The bus iness  operates  through five connected special isms. Today, 75% of our opera ng profit and over hal f of our revenue
come from special isms other than Adver s ing. We are no longer just an adver s ing agency, we are much more than that,
we are a  crea ve solu ons company. Special is t exper se in discipl ines  you may expect, such as  performance media, P R
and data analy cs. But a lso in some that you may not, such as : influencer management, eSports  marke ng and behaviour
change. This  specia l is t exper se connects , through data and technology, to del iver meaningful , commercial  and societal
change.

 

2022 People and Planet



A global  employee engagement survey, The Loop, was  launched and ini al  results  were encouraging with high, pos i ve
engagement. A Global  Head of Divers i ty, Equity and I nclus ion ("DE&I") was  hired to support and drive the D E&I  strategy.
Employee-led networks  were expanded global ly to support protected groups, including: gender, ethnici ty, LGBTQ +, and
fami ly.

P lanet commitments  were publ ished to halve greenhouse gas  emiss ions  across  the Company's  own opera ons and i ts
value chain by 2030, val idated by the Science Based Targets  ini a ve. Commitment has  been made to improving the
positive impact of our work, and grow the percentage of revenue from planet-pos itive campaigns.

 
Outlook
W hilst there are clear and obvious  headwinds  affec ng society, bus iness  in general  and our sector, we have a clear
roadmap for the next stage of our transformation journey.

We are wel l  placed and remain confident that further progress  wi l l  be made in the current year, and that we wi l l  con nue
to accelerate change and del iver profi table growth.

For the fi rst time, in a  long time, we have a clear runway ahead of us .

 

2022 Financial Review

 

Financial performance

The Group manages  i ts  financial  performance through a number of key performance measures, which are stated below.

·     Net revenue of £271.1m, up 8.7% from £249.3m; l ike-for-l ike growth of 4.3%.

·     Headl ine operating profi t margin of 13.1%, up from 12.5%.

·     Headl ine profi t before tax of £31.8m, the highest ever for the Group, up from £27.3m.

·     Statutory profi t before tax of £5.4m, down from £21.6m.

·     Headl ine earnings  per share of 14.8p, up from 11.3p.

·     Statutory earnings  per share of 0.1p, down from 10.5p.

·     Net cash of £30.0m, down from £34.4m.

·     Drawdown on the Company's  revolving mul currency credit faci l i ty of £7.0m, reduced from
£20.0m.

 

 

Headline

  

  Statutory
£m 2022 2021 Movement  2022 2021 Movement

Bi l l ings* 597.5 533.4 12.0% - - -

Revenue 462.5 394.6 17.2% 462.5 394.6 17.2%

Net revenue* 271.1 249.3 8.7% - - -

EBITDA* 45.2 40.8 10.8% - - -

Operating profi t 35.4 31.1 13.8% 10.5 27.3 -61.5%

Profi t before taxation 31.8 27.3 16.5% 5.4 21.6 -75.0%

Profi t for the year 24.0 20.0 20.5% 0.2 13.2 -98.5%

Earnings** 18.1 13.7 32.8% 0.1 12.8 -99.2%

Earnings  per share 14.8p 11.3p 31.7% 0.1p 10.5p -99.3%

Tax rate 24.5% 26.6% -2.1pts 95.5% 39.1% +56.4pts

 
*Billings, net revenue and EBITDA are excluded from Statutory results, as these are not IFRS terms. Although our peers may use these same
terms, they are not necessarily calculated on the same basis. However, as measures of Headline performance they have been included to better
assess the underlying performance of the business and to enable better comparability both across the industry and when comparing year-on-
year results.
 
**Earnings are calculated after deducting share of profits attributable to non-controlling interests.

Headline results

The Headl ine results  are a l terna ve performance measures  that the Board cons iders  the most appropriate bas is  to assess
the underlying performance of the bus iness , monitor i ts  results  on a month-to-month bas is , enable comparison with
industry peers  and measure l ike-for-l ike, year-on-year performance.

Group Headl ine opera ng profit was  £35.4m, increas ing from £31.1m in 2021. The Group reported a Statutory opera ng
profi t of £10.5m, down from £27.3m in 2021, due to defence advisory costs  and other non-trading i tems.

The Group's  Headl ine profit improvement compared to 2021 was driven largely by strong performance in the I ssues  and

Pass ions  specia l isms and by central  cost savings. Despite reduced revenue in Adver s ing, an improvement in the opera ng

profi t margin resulted in increased absolute profi t in this  specia l ism.

The Group Headl ine opera ng profit margin increased to 13.1% from 12.5% in 2021. This  represents  con nued progress
towards  the Group's  opera ng profit margin target of 18% by 2027 announced at the Capital  Markets  Day in February
2023.

 

The key movements between Statutory to Headline results

 

 
Year ended

31 December 2022
Year ended

31 December 2021
 £000 £000



 £000 £000
   
Statutory profit before taxation 5,423 21,632
Separately disclosed i tems 13,352 (3,783)
Dividends paid to IFRS 2 put option holders 7,811 5,270
Put option accounting - IFRS 9 and IFRS 2 2,233 2,121
Movement of FVTPL investments  under IFRS 9 1,587 (2,510)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 597 965
Impairment of non-current assets 564 2,770
Revaluation of contingent cons ideration 266 532
Loss  on disposal  of subs idiaries  and associates - 83
Revaluation of associates  on trans ition to subs idiaries - 234
Headline profit before taxation 31,833 27,314
 

The larger i tems caus ing the movement between Statutory and Headl ine results  for 2022 are explained below and further
detai ls  are provided in Notes  1 and 2 of the financial  s tatements .

Separately disclosed items
During 2022, £10.8m of costs  were incurred as  the Company was subject to two compe ng bids  to take control  and ful l
ownership of the bus iness . Managing the Company's  response to these two takeover bids  resulted in a  number of one-off
external  advisory and addi onal  internal  management costs . I n addi on, we commenced a global  efficiency programme
which incurred one-off profess ional  fees  of £1.0m, and we restructured and closed a number of bus inesses  with costs  of
£1.8m. Last year's  credit of £3.8m arose as  a  result of the forgiveness  of £2.2m of US Paycheck P rotec on P rogram (P P P )
loans  and the £2.8m release of a  long-term incentive plan accrual , partia l ly offset by lease surrender expenses  and the cost
aris ing from the repayment of £1.0m of furlough money to the UK government.

Dividends paid to IFRS 2 put option holders
Local  management in some of the Group's  subs idiaries  own minori ty shareholdings  in those subs idiaries . As  shareholders ,
they also have rights  to receive dividends, and, as  they are employees  of those subs idiaries , these are recognised as  staff
costs .

FVTPL investments under IFRS 9 - financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
The Group holds  unl isted equity investments  in early-stage companies  (detai led in Note 19 of the financial  s tatements). The
revalua on of these companies  is  excluded from Headl ine results . Market weakness  in the technology sector made
fundrais ing and trading more difficult for them in 2022, resul ng in an impairment of £2.9m and downwards  revalua ons
of £2.7m. However, this  was  partia l ly offset by upwards  revaluations  of £3.0m and profi t on disposal  of £1.2m.

Put option accounting - IFRS 9 and IFRS 2
These charges  relate to the revaluations  of the put option l iabi l i ties  (both IFRS 2 and IFRS 9) during the year.

Amortisation of acquired intangibles
Acquired intangibles  relate to brand names and customer rela onships . Refer to Note 14 of the financial  s tatements  for
detai ls .

Impairment of non-current assets
I n 2022, the Group recorded an impairment charge of £0.6m, which primari ly relates  to the write-off of goodwi l l  in M&C
Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Limited and Scarecrow Communica ons Limited. The 2021 charge mainly cons isted of a  £1.9m
goodwi l l  wri te-off in Santa Clara Participações  Ltda, a long with smal ler intangible write-offs .

Net revenue performance by specialism

Group net revenue increased 8.7% in 2022 (4.3% on a l ike-for-l ike bas is ). A l ike-for-l ike bas is  appl ies  constant foreign
exchange rates  and removes en  es disposed of or acquired during 2021, s ince there were no disposals  or acquis i ons
during 2022; i t a lso adjusts  for any reclass ifica on of en  es between the special isms. The Pass ions  and I ssues
special isms saw the largest l ike-for-l ike net revenue growth of a l l  specia l isms in 2022.

 

Net revenue by Reported Like-for-Like
Specialism 2022 Growth 2022 Growth

£m versus 2021 £m versus 2021
  

Advertis ing 124.3 (2.3)% 118.1 (4.0)%
Media 34.2 4.2% 34.2 (1.5)%
Issues 42.2 24.4% 41.4 22.0%
Consulting 37.0 19.6% 37.0 7.7%
Pass ions 33.4 36.7% 33.4 22.6%
Group 271.1 8.7% 264.1 4.3%

 

Adver s ing remains  the largest specia l ism, compris ing 46% of total  net revenue (2021: 51%) on a reported bas is . However,
the other four specia l isms have increased their share of total  net revenue to 54% (2020: 49%). This  shiR away from
Adver s ing con nues to support opera ng profit growth, as  these other specia l isms have an average opera ng profit
margin of 24% compared to Adver s ing with an opera ng profit margin of 9%. There has  been a marked shiR in revenue
between the di fferent specia l isms over recent years  as  shown by the table below:

Reported net revenue Advertising Media Issues Consulting Passions Total
 

2022 46% 13% 15% 14% 12% 100%
2021 51% 13% 14% 12% 10% 100%
2020 61% 10% 13% 8% 8% 100%
2019 64% 11% 10% 7% 8% 100%

 

Net revenue performance by region

At a  regional  level , 2022 saw a reduc on in Austral ia 's  reported revenue, due to the loss  of two major cl ients . The largest
regional  increase was in the Americas  with a  33% increase in reported revenue but the Middle East and Africa, and As ia
also grew s igni ficantly.

 

Net revenue by Reported Like-for-Like
Region 2022 Growth 2022 Growth



Region 2022 Growth 2022 Growth
£m versus 2021 £m versus 2021

 
UK 98.2 3.3% 98.2 3.3%
Europe 15.3 0.7% 15.3 (1.1)%
Middle East and Africa 23.4 15.6% 23.4 11.7%
Asia 26.1 12.1% 22.1 10.3%
Austral ia 52.9 (2.1)% 52.9 (5.4)%
Americas 55.2 33.1% 52.2 13.9%
Group 271.1 8.7% 264.1 4.3%

 

The UK remains  the largest region in the Group compris ing 36% of total  net revenue (2021: 39%) on a reported revenue
basis . The recent shi fts  in share of revenue by region can be seen in the table below:

Reported net
revenue

UK Europe* Middle East
and Africa

Asia* Australia Americas* Total

2022 36% 6% 9% 10% 19% 20% 100%
2021 39% 6% 8% 8% 22% 17% 100%
2020 39% 13% 7% 5% 21% 15% 100%
2019 40% 12% 7% 5% 20% 16% 100%

 

*Includes material acquisitions or disposals during this period. The businesses in France and Spain (Europe) were disposed of and the businesses in
China and Pakistan (Asia) and Brazil (Americas) were acquired.

 

Financial income and expense

The Group's  finance income and expense includes  bank interest, lease interest and fa ir value adjustments  to minori ty
shareholder put option l iabi l i ties  (IFRS 9). Further detai ls  can be found in Note 7 of the financial  s tatements .

Bank interest payable for the year was  £1.2m (2021: £1.6m). Higher interest rates  on the Company's  revolving
mul currency credit faci l i ty agreement were offset by op mal  a l loca on of cash around the Group, which reduced the
drawdown on the Faci l i ty.

The interest on leases  increased to £3.0m (2021: £2.8m) due to the ful l -year impact of leases  entered into in 2021.

The fa ir value adjustment of put op on l iabi l i es  created a charge of £1.1m (2021: charge of £0.9m). This  increase is  due
to increased profi tabi l i ty in the agencies  where there are outstanding put option arrangements .

Tax

Headline Tax
O ur Headl ine tax rate has  reduced marginal ly from 26.6% to 24.5%. The reduc on is  due to the use of prior years ' tax
losses  (caused in part by the Covid-19 pandemic) to offset current profitabi l i ty and an increase in profits  from countries
with lower tax rates , partly offset by increased expenditure on disal lowable costs .

Statutory Tax
The Statutory tax rate increased from 39.1% in 2021 to 95.5% in 2022. In general , we expect large variations  in Statutory tax
rates . This  i s  because i tems such as  share-based payments  (op on charges) and put op ons aris ing from investments  in
subs idiaries  are non-deduc ble against corpora on tax, due to their being capital  in nature. I n 2022, two par es  tried to
acquire the Company and a propor on of the defence costs  was  disal lowable due to their being capital  in nature. This
increased our non-deductible expenses.

Non-controlling interests (minority interests)

O n a Headl ine bas is , the non-control l ing interest share of the Group's  profit represents  the minori ty shareholders ' share of

each of the Group's  subs idiaries ' profit or loss  for the year. I n 2022, the share of profits  a9ributable to non-control l ing

interests  reduced to £5.9m (2021: £6.4m) and minori ty interests  reduced to 25% of profit aRer tax (2021: 32%). This  reflects

a reduc on during the year in the minori ty interest shareholdings  in several  Group en  es, as  a  result of the  se9lement of

put options, to the value of £12.1m.

O n a Statutory bas is , non-control l ing interests  excludes  any minori ty interests  which relate to I F RS 2 put op on holders
(holders  of put op ons that are con ngent on being employed by the relevant company), whose share of the en ty's
Statutory profi t i s  paid as  dividends each year, and are reported as  staff costs  in the Statutory results .

 

Dividends

The Board bel ieves  that the Group has  s igni ficant growth potentia l . Accordingly, the Board bel ieves  that the Group would be
best served, and this  poten al  real ised, from inves ng annual  profits  back into the bus iness  and into new growth
initiatives .

However, the Board recognises  the importance of dividends within the Company's  capital  a l loca on pol icy, a longs ide the
se9lement of put op ons and investment in growth ini a ves. The Board has  therefore decided to resume payment of
dividends in 2023 and intends to adopt a  progress ive dividend pol icy in future, targe ng a payout ra o of 25% in the
medium term.

The Company did not pay a  dividend to i ts  shareholders  in 2022 (2021: ni l ). But given the financial  performance during the
year, the Board is  recommending the payment of a  final  dividend of 1.5 pence per share. 

Subject to shareholder approval  at the Annual  General  Mee ng, to be held on 14 June 2023, the dividend wi l l  be paid on 12
July 2023 to shareholders  on the register of members  at 9 June 2023. The shares  wi l l  go ex-dividend on 8 June 2023.

 

Cash flow and banking arrangements

Total  gross  cash (excluding bank overdraRs) at 31 December 2022 was £41.5m (2021: £69.4m). Cash net of bank
borrowings  was  £30.0m, compared to £34.4m in 2021.

I n 2022, the Group generated opera ng cash from trading (before working capital ) of £43.0m, before the costs  associated
with the takeover defence (£10.8m) and before dividends and al loca ons paid to I F RS 2 put op on holders  (£7.8m). There
was a £4.8m net inflow from working capital  (2021: £15.2m ouTlow), driven mainly by a  focus  on bi l l ing more quickly and



was a £4.8m net inflow from working capital  (2021: £15.2m ouTlow), driven mainly by a  focus  on bi l l ing more quickly and
col lec ng more promptly. This  was  offset by £10.3m of lease payments  (2021: £9.0m) and £12.1m of payments  to acquire
non-control l ing interests  (2021: £5.3m). I n addi on, £5.6m of tangible and intangible fixed assets  were purchased in 2022
(compared to £2.6m in 2021), primari ly due to investment in the new office in Sydney, Austral ia .

Net opera ng cashflow (opera ng cash from trading, net of working capital , purchases  of intangible/tangible fixed assets ,
and the principal  payment on leases) for the year was  £34.9m, which represents  a  cash convers ion from Headl ine
operating profi t of 99%.

 

The fol lowing table sets  out the key movements  in net cash during 2022:

Movement in net cash during 2022 £m
  
Net cash at the beginning of the year 34.4
Increase in cash from trading 43.0
Increase in cash from working capital  movements 4.8
Net interest paid (0.8)
Purchases  of intangible/tangible fixed assets (5.6)
Tax paid (6.7)
Dividends and al locations  paid to IFRS 2 put option holders (7.8)
Payment of lease l iabi l i ties (10.3)
Costs  associated with the takeover defence (10.8)
Cash cons ideration for non-control l ing interest acquired (12.1)
Other movements 1.9
Net cash at the end of the year 30.0

 

The Company has  a  revolving mul currency credit faci l i ty agreement with Na onal  Westminster Bank P lc and Barclays
Bank P LC for up to £47.0m (the "Faci l i ty") which terminates  on 21 May 2024, with an op on to extend for an addi onal
year. The Faci l i ty includes  a  £2.5m overdraR and the abi l i ty to draw up to £3.0m as  a  bonding faci l i ty as  required. The
primary purpose of the Faci l i ty i s  to provide the Group with addi onal  l iquidity headroom to support any varia ons in
working capital .

At 31 December 2022, £7.0m was drawn on the Faci l i ty compared to £20.0m at 31 December 2021.

 

Capital expenditure

Total  capital  expenditure in 2022 (including soRware acquired) increased to £5.6m (2021: £2.6m). This  included £1.7m on
furniture, fiVngs and other equipment (2021: £0.3m), £1.6m (2021: £1.4m) on computer equipment, £1.1m (2021: £0.1m)
on leasehold improvements , and £1.0m (2021: £0.8m) on soRware and film rights . The remaining £0.2m (2021: ni l ) was
spent on acquiring the customer relationships  of the Channel  Mum influencer network.

 

Share-based incentive arrangements

The Group operates  a  bus iness  model  through which certain members  of senior management have minori ty ownership in
the subs idiary companies  they operate, through share-based incen ve (put op on) arrangements . Given the Group's  strong
cash pos i on, we intend to se9le put op ons in cash rather than shares  when the op ons fa l l  due, which reduces  the risk
of substantia l  share di lution to shareholders .

The table below presents  a  range of poten al  cash payments  to se9le put op ons for the next s ix years  based on the future
share price of the Company, the es mated future bus iness  performance for each bus iness  unit and assuming the put
op ons are exercised as  soon as  poss ible. These forecasts  are based on the Group's  three-year plans  which were
developed as  part of our budget cycle.

 Potentially payable  

Future Share Price of the
Company

2023
£000

2024
£000

2025
£000

2026
£000

2027
£000

2028
£000

Total
£000

At 151p* £17,498 £2,470 £373 £2,932 £924 £740 £24,937
At 160p £18,324 £2,609 £401 £2,978 £979 £784 £26,075
At 175p £19,746 £2,841 £448 £3,102 £1,071 £858 £28,066
At 200p £22,323 £3,227 £526 £3,522 £1,224 £981 £31,803

At 225p £24,800 £3,512 £604 £3,941 £1,377 £1,103 £35,337

At 250p £27,226 £3,747 £682 £4,360 £1,530 £1,226 £38,771

At 300p £32,121 £4,217 £838 £5,199 £1,836 £1,471 £45,682
*Share price at 31 December 2022
 
P ut op on holders  are not required to exercise their op ons at the first opportunity. Many do not and prefer to remain
shareholders  in the subs idiary companies  they manage. As  a  result, some put op on holders  may exercise their op ons
later than the dates  we have estimated in the table above.

I f, in the future, the Company decides  to fulfil  the put op ons by way of shares  in the Company, then the number of shares
in the Company that wi l l  be provided is  equal  to the l iabi l i ty divided by the Company's  share price at the date of exercise.

 

Summary

The Company's  performance in 2022 was strong, par cularly given the distrac ons of the poten al  takeovers . Driven by a
9% increase in revenue and a further increase in Headl ine opera ng profit margin to 13.1% (2021: 12.5%), the Company
generated i ts  highest ever net revenue, Headl ine opera ng profit, Headl ine profit before tax and Headl ine earnings. The
strategy set out in 2021, and reinforced in 2023, con nues to reap rewards  and we have a clear path towards  further
margin and profi t increases.

The Company expects  Headl ine profit before tax for 2023 to be in l ine with market expecta ons of £36.5m-£38.0m,
representing a  15-19% increase on the record profi ts  of 2022.

Along with the wider market, we have seen some impact in the year to date from the headwinds  in the technology sector,
par cularly in our Media specia l ism. However, we con nue to see the benefit of our diverse range of bus inesses  with
strong pipel ines  in the Consul ng, I ssues  and Pass ions  specia l isms, which gives  us  confidence for the remainder of the
year. I n addi on, the cost efficiency programme is  expected to del iver savings  in the second hal f of 2023. Consequently,



strong pipel ines  in the Consul ng, I ssues  and Pass ions  specia l isms, which gives  us  confidence for the remainder of the
year. I n addi on, the cost efficiency programme is  expected to del iver savings  in the second hal f of 2023. Consequently,
profi t wi l l  be more weighted to the second hal f of 2023, than in 2022.

 
This  statement a long with the audited consol idated statutory financial  s tatements  is  avai lable on our website:
https://www.mcsaatchiplc.com/reports-results/2022
 
Printed copies  of the Annual  Report are being posted to shareholders  who have requested hard copies .

Consolidated Income Statement

2022  
   Total  

Year ended 31 December Note £000  
Bi l l ings  (unaudited) 4 597,520
Revenue 4 462,533  
Project cost / direct cost (191,393)
Net revenue  4 271,140  
Staff costs 5 (198,765)
Depreciation 16,17 (9,326)
Amortisation 14 (1,060)
Impairment charges 14,17 (564)
Other operating charges (49,474)
Other (losses) / gains 19 (1,403)
Operating profit 10,548  
Share of results  of associates  and joint ventures 15 (10)
Gain on disposal  of subs idiaries 11 -
Impairment of associate investment 15 -
Finance income 7 391
Finance expense 7 (5,506)
Profit before taxation 5,423  
Taxation 8 (5,178)
Profit for the year  245  
Attributable to:  
Equity shareholders  of the Group 90
Non-control l ing interests 155
Profit for the year 245  
Profi t per share
Bas ic (pence) 1 0.07p

Di luted (pence) 1 0.07p
 

 

Headline results
Operating profi t 1 35,388

Profi t before taxation 1 31,833

Profi t after tax attributable to equity shareholders  of the Group 1 18,105

Basic earnings  per share (pence) 1 14.81p

Di luted earnings  per share (pence) 1 13.47p

EBITDA 45,168

 

The fol lowing notes  form part of these consol idated financial  s tatements .

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

2022 2021
Year ended 31 December £000 £000
Profit for the year 245 13,173
Other comprehensive profit*   
Exchange di fferences  on trans lating foreign operations 4,785 664
Other comprehensive profit for the year net of tax 4,785 664

Total comprehensive profit for the year 5,030 13,837
   
Total  comprehensive profi t attributable to:
Equity shareholders  of the Group 4,875 13,421
Non-control l ing interests 155 416
Total comprehensive profit for the year 5,030 13,837

*All items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income may be reclassified to the income statement.

https://www.mcsaatchiplc.com/reports-results/2022


 

The fol lowing notes  form part of these consol idated financial  s tatements .

Consolidated Balance Sheet
2022 2021   

At 31 December Note £000 £000   
Non-current assets   
Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts 14 41,968 40,499
Inve s tme nts  i n a s s oci a te s  a nd JV 15 191 202
Pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt 16 8,310 6,333
Ri ght-of-us e  a s s e ts 17 43,992 44,397
Othe r non-curre nt a s s e ts 18 1,107 1,211
De fe rre d ta x a s s e ts 9 5,131 6,777
Fi na nci a l  a s s e ts  a t fa i r va l ue  through profi t or l os s 19 11,986 15,183
De fe rre d a nd conti nge nt cons i de ra ti on 13 914 -
  113,599 114,602   
Current assets
Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s 20 132,067 132,741
Curre nt ta x a s s e ts 3,909 247
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 41,492 69,419
  177,468 202,407   
Current liabilities
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 21 (155,547) (154,049)
Provi s i ons 22 (1,056) (1,193)
Curre nt ta x l i a bi l i ti e s (481) (837)
Borrowi ngs 23 (4,430) (14,737)
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 17 (6,448) (6,950)
De fe rre d a nd conti nge nt cons i de ra ti on 13 - (984)
Mi nori ty s ha re hol de r put opti on l i a bi l i ti e s 26/27 (18,419) (20,788)

(186,381) (199,538)   
Net current (liabilities) / assets (8,913) 2,869   
Total assets less current liabilities 104,686 117,471   
Non-current liabilities
De fe rre d ta x l i a bi l i ti e s 9 (1,245) (777)
Corpora ti on ta x l i a bi l i ti e s 9 (856) -
Borrowi ngs 23 (6,802) (19,821)
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 17 (49,122) (49,895)
Mi nori ty s ha re hol de r put opti on l i a bi l i ti e s 26/27 (4,429) (11.572)
Othe r non-curre nt l i a bi l i ti e s 24 (4,046) (2,549)

(66,500) (84,614)   
Total net assets 38,186 32,857   
 

2022 2021
At 31 December Note £000 £000
Equity
Share capital 28 1,227 1,227
Share premium 50,327 50,327
Merger reserve 37,554 37,554
Treasury reserve (550) (550)
Minori ty interest put option reserve (2,896) (6,615)
Non-control l ing interest acquired (32,984) (29,190)
Foreign exchange reserve 6,638 1,853
Accumulated losses (21,303) (22,122)
Equity attributable to shareholders  of the Group 38,013 32,484
Non-control l ing interest 173 373
Total equity 38,186 32,857

Reserves  are defined in note 35.

These consol idated financial  s tatements  were approved and authorised for i ssue by the Board of Directors  on 17 Apri l  2023
and s igned on i ts  behal f by:

Bruce Marson

Chief Financial Officer

M&C Saatchi  plc

Company Number 05114893

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

  
Share

capital
Share

premium
Merger
reserve

Treasury
reserve

MI put option
reserve

Non-
controlling

interest
acquired

Foreign
exchange
reserves

Retained
earnings /

(accumulated
losses)

 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 December 2020 1,159 44,607 37,554 (550) (4,953) (29,190) 1,210 (4,939)

Acqui s i ti ons  i ncl udi ng de fe rre d 12,13,26 54 4,949 - - (2,000) - - -



Acqui s i ti ons  i ncl udi ng de fe rre d
cons i de ra ti on 12,13,26 54 4,949 - - (2,000) - - -

Exe rci s e  of Mi nori ty Inte re s t put
opti ons 26 5 419 - - 338 - - -

Tra ns fe r from e qui ty to ca s h-
s e ttl e d put opti ons 27 - - - - - - - (32,555)

Tra ns fe r from ca s h to e qui ty-
s e ttl e d put opti ons 27 - - - - - - - 994

Sha re  opti on cha rge 27 - - - - - - - 2,235

Buyout of e qui ty put opti ons  i n
ca s h - - - - - - - (632)

Is s ue  of s ha re s 6 352 - - - - - -

Exe rci s e  of put opti ons 3 - - - - - - (3)

Di s pos a l  of s ubs i di a ri e s - - - - - - (21) 21

Di vi de nds 10 - - - - - - - -

Tota l  tra ns a cti ons  wi th owne rs  68 5,720 - - (1,662) - (21) (29,940)

Tota l  profi t for the  ye a r - - - - - - - 12,757

Tota l  othe r compre he ns i ve
i ncome  for the  ye a r  - - - - - - 664 -

At 31 December 2021  1,227 50,327 37,554 (550) (6,615) (29,190) 1,853 (22,122)

Sha re  opti on cha rge 27 - - - - - - - 1,229
Amounts  pa i d on s e ttl e me nt of
LTIP 27 - - - - - - - (500)

Exe rci s e  of put opti ons 26 - - - - 3,719 (3,794) - -

Di vi de nds 10 - - - - - - - -

Tota l  tra ns a cti ons  wi th owne rs  - - - - 3,719 (3,794) - 729

Tota l  profi t for the  ye a r - - - - - - - 90

Tota l  othe r compre he ns i ve
i ncome  for the  ye a r  - - - - - - 4,785 -

At 31 December 2022  1,227 50,327 37,554 (550) (2,896) (32,984) 6,638 (21,303)

 

The fol lowing notes  form part of these consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December Note

2022
£000

2021
£000

Operating profit 10,548 27,258
Adjustments for:  
Depreciation of plant and equipment 16 2,480 2,237
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 6,846 6,959
Loss  on sale of plant and equipment 165 95
Loss  on sale of software intangibles 175 824
Revaluation of financial  assets  at FVTPL 19 1,403 (3,533)
Revaluation of contingent cons ideration 13 266 532
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets                 14 597 965
Impairment of goodwi l l  and other intangibles                 14 556 1,900
Impairment and amortisation of capital ised software intangible assets 14 635 1,484
Exercise of share-based payment schemes with cash 26 (500) -
Equity settled share-based payment expenses 27 1,229 2,235
Operating cash before movements in working capital 24,400 40,956
(Increase) in trade and other receivables (4,187) (38,912)
Increase in trade and other payables 9,104 23,434
(Decrease) / increase in provis ions (137) 316
Cash generated from operations  29,180 25,794
Tax paid (6,712) (6,844)
Net cash from operating activities 22,468 18,950
Investing activities
Acquis i tions  of subs idiaries  net of cash acquired 12 - 633
Disposal  of associate or subs idiary (net of cash disposed of)  11 - (2)
Acquis i tions  of unl isted investments 19 - (81)
Proceeds from sale of unl isted investments 19 918 209
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 223
Purchase of plant and equipment 16 (4,383) (1,789)
Purchase of capital ised software 14 (1,192) (837)
Interest received 7 391 260
Net cash consumed by investing activities (4,266) (1,384)
Net cash from operating and investing activities 18,202 17,566
Financing activities   
Dividends paid to non-control l ing interest (430) (152)
Cash cons ideration for non-control l ing interest acquired and other options 27 (12,104) (5,348)
Payment of deferred cons ideration 13 (1,250) -
Buyout of equity put options  in cash - (632)
Payment of lease l iabi l i ties 17 (7,307) (6,210)
Proceeds from bank loans 23 - 9,301
Repayment of bank loans 23 (13,410) (16,909)
Borrowing costs - (602)
Interest paid 7 (1,200) (1,555)



Interest paid 7 (1,200) (1,555)
Interest paid on leases 17 (2,970) (2,800)
Net cash consumed by financing activities (38,671) (24,907)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (20,469) (7,341)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations  on cash held 2,711 (55)
Cash and cash equivalents  at the beginning of the year 54,979 62,375
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37,221 54,979
   
Cash and cash equivalents 41,492 69,419
Bank overdrafts* 23 (4,271) (14,440)
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37,221 54,979
Bank loans  and borrowings** 23 (7,212) (20,590)
Net cash 30,009 34,389
 

*These overdraRs are legal ly offset against balances  held in the UK ; however, they have not been ne9ed off in accordance

with the requirements  of IAS32.42.

**Bank loans  and borrowings  are defined in note 23; they exclude the lease l iabi l i ty of £55,570k (2021 £56,845k) (note 17)

The fol lowing notes  form part of these consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

Preparation
Basis of preparation
The consol idated financial  s tatements  have been prepared in accordance with UK  adopted interna onal  accoun ng
standards, in conformity with the requirements  of the Companies  Act 2006.

The consol idated financial  s tatements  are presented in pounds sterl ing and, unless  stated otherwise, rounded to the nearest
thousand. They have been prepared under the historical  cost conven on, except for the revalua on of certain financial
instruments .

Going concern
These financial  s tatements  have been prepared on the going concern bas is .

The Board have concluded that under the most l ikely going concern scenarios , the Group wi l l  have sufficient l iquidity and
headroom on bank covenants  to con nue to operate for a  period of not less  than a year from approving the financial
statements .

The Board have formed their opinion aRer evalua ng 5 different severe but plaus ible forecast scenarios  and a reverse stress
test, extending to 31 December 2025, compris ing:

1.     a  s igni ficant reduction in new bus iness  wins;
2.     a  s igni ficant increase in wage inflation;
3.     a  s igni ficant number of top cl ients  are lost;
4.     a  s igni ficant economic downturn; and
5.     a  reverse stress  test case.

 
These severe but plaus ible scenarios  are assumed to materia l ise from Q 1 2023 onwards. The es mated decl ine in profit
before tax ranges  from £22m to £26m compared to the base case plan for the cumula ve period ending 31 December 2024,
including a  £11m to £18m decl ine in profi t before tax in 2023.

The reverse stress  test case evaluates  how extreme condi ons would need to be for the Group to break i ts  covenants  within
the going concern review period. The condi ons go s ignificantly further than the severe but plaus ible scenarios  and reflect a
scenario that the Directors  cons ider to be highly unl ikely.

The Directors  have also cons idered the impact of cl imate change on going concern, taking into account the Company's
support for Ad Net Zero (the industry ini a ve to tackle cl imate change led by the Adver s ing Associa on and i ts  members),
and do not bel ieve that there is  a  s igni ficant financial  impact.

The Board is  sa sfied that the Group's  forecasts , which take into account reasonably poss ible changes  in trading
performance, show that there are no materia l  uncertain es  over going concern, and that, even under the severe but plaus ible
scenarios , the Group wi l l  con nue to have sufficient l iquidity and headroom to operate within the terms of i ts  banking
covenants . The Board, therefore, have concluded the going concern bas is  of preparation continues  to be appropriate.
 
Foreign exchange
Transac ons in foreign currencies  are trans lated at the exchange rate rul ing at the dates  of the transac ons. Monetary
assets  and l iabi l i es  denominated in foreign currencies  are retrans lated at the exchange rates  rul ing at the balance sheet
date, with the resulting exchange di fferences  recognised in the income statement.

The accounts  of each subs idiary are prepared us ing the func onal  currency of that subs idiary. The income statements  of
foreign subs idiary undertakings  are trans lated into pounds sterl ing at average exchange rates  on consol ida on. The assets
and l iabi l i es  of overseas  subs idiaries  (which comprise the Group's  net investment in foreign opera ons) are trans lated at
the exchange rate rul ing at the balance sheet date. The resul ng exchange differences  are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity within the foreign exchange reserve.

Consolidation
The Group's  financial  s tatements  consol idate the results  of the Company and i ts  subs idiary en  es, and include the share of
i ts  joint ventures ' and associates ' results  accounted for under the equity method.

A subs idiary is  an en ty control led by the Group. The Group controls  a  subs idiary when i t i s  exposed, or has  the rights , to
variable returns  from i ts  involvement with the subs idiary and has  the abi l i ty to affect those returns  through i ts  power over
the subs idiary.

The results  of subs idiaries  are included from the date of acquis i on. W here necessary, adjustments  are made to the
financial  s tatements  of subs idiaries  to bring their accoun ng pol icies  into l ine with those of the Group. I ntra-group
transactions, balances, income, and expenses  are el iminated on consol idation.

W here a consol idated company is  less  than 100% owned by the Group, the treatment of the non-control l ing interest share of
the results  and net assets  i s  dependent on how the non-control l ing interests ' equity award is  accounted for. Where the equity
is  accounted for as  a  share-based payment award under I F RS 2, a l l  dividend ouTlow is  taken to staff costs , and there is  no
non-control l ing interest. I n a l l  other cases , the non-control l ing interest share of the results  and net assets  i s  recognised at
each reporting date in equity, separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders  of the Company.



Significant accounting policies
The s ignificant accoun ng pol icies  appl ied in the prepara on of these consol idated financial  s tatements  are set out in the
relevant notes. These pol icies  have been appl ied cons istently to a l l  the years  presented, unless  otherwise stated.

Critical accounting policies
Certain of the Group's  s ignificant accoun ng pol icies  are cons idered by the Directors  to be cri cal , due to the level  of
complexity, judgement, or es ma on involved in their appl ica on and their poten al  impact on the consol idated financial
statements . The cri cal  accoun ng pol icies  are l i s ted below and explained in more detai l  in the relevant notes  to the Group
financial  s tatements .

Revenue recognition
The Group appl ied IFRS 15 Revenue on contracts  with customers  from the start of 2018.

The Group's  revenue is  earned from the provis ion of adver s ing and marke ng services , together with commiss ion-based
income in rela on to media spend and commiss ion-based income in rela on to ta lent performance. Revenue from contracts
with customers  is  recognised as , or when, the performance obl iga ons present within the contractual  agreements  are
sa sfied. Depending on the arrangement with the cl ient, the Group may act as  principal  or as  agent in the provis ion of these
services .

See note 4 for a  ful l  l i s ting of the Group's  revenue accounting pol icies .

Put option accounting (IFRS 2 and IFRS 9)
I t i s  common for equity partners  in the Group's  subs idiaries  to hold put op ons over their equity, such that they can require
the Group to purchase their non-control l ing interest for ei ther a  variable number of the Company shares  or cash. Dependent
on the terms and substance of the underlying agreement, these op ons are ei ther recognised as  a  put op on l iabi l i ty under
IFRS 9 (note 26) or as  a  put option under IFRS 2 (note 27) - see s igni ficant judgements  below.

An I F RS 9 scheme should be cons idered as  reward for future bus iness  performance and is  not condi onal  on the holder
being an employee of the bus iness . These instruments  are recognised in ful l  at the amor sed cost of the underlying award on
the date of incep on, with both a l iabi l i ty on the balance sheet and a corresponding amount within the minori ty interest put
op on reserve being recognised. At each period end, the amor sed cost of the put op on l iabi l i ty i s  calculated in
accordance with the put op on agreement, to determine a best es mate of the future value of the expected award. Resultant
movements  in the amor sed cost of these instruments  are charged to the income statement within finance income/expense.
The put op on l iabi l i ty wi l l  vary with both the Group's  share price and the subs idiary's  financial  performance. Upon
exercise of an award by a  holder, the l iabi l i ty i s  ex nguished and the associated minori ty interest put op on reserve is
transferred to the non-control l ing interest acquired reserve.

An I F RS 2 scheme should be cons idered as  reward for future bus iness  performance and is  condi onal  on the holder being an
employee of the bus iness . These schemes are recognised as  staff costs  over the ves ng period (i f equity-se9led) or un l  the
op on is  exercised (i f cash-se9led). I n September 2021, the Board made the decis ion to move to cash se9lement of these put
op ons going forward. This  required a fa i r value assessment on the day of the modifica on and a movement between
reserves  and l iabi l i ties .

See note 27 for a  ful l  description of the Group's  accounting pol icy for IFRS 2 put options.

Headline results
As stated in the Financial  Review, the Directors  bel ieve that the Headl ine results  and Headl ine earnings  per share (see note 1)
provide addi onal  useful  informa on on the underlying performance of the bus iness . The Headl ine results  reflect the
underlying profitabi l i ty of the bus iness  units , by excluding a  number of i tems that are not part of rou ne bus iness  income
and expenses.

I n addi on, the Headl ine results  are used for internal  performance management and reward, and they are a lso used to
calculate minori ty shareholder put op on l iabi l i es. The term 'Headl ine' i s  not a  defined term in I F RS. Note 1 reconci les
Statutory results  to Headl ine results  and the segmental  repor ng (note 3) reflects  Headl ine results , in accordance with I F RS
8.

The i tems that are excluded from Headl ine results  are:
·     Exceptional  separately disclosed i tems that are one-off in nature and are not part of running the bus iness .
·     Acquis i tion-related costs .
·     Gains  or losses  generated by disposals  of subs idiaries  and associates .
·     Fair value adjustments  to unl isted equity investments , acquis i on related con ngent cons idera on and

put options.
·     Dividends paid to IFRS 2 put option holders .

 

Unlisted investments
The Group holds  certain unl isted equity investments  which are class ified as  financial  assets  at F VTP L (see note 19). These
investments  are ini al ly recognised at their fa i r value. At the end of each repor ng period, the fa ir value is  reassessed, with
gains  or losses  being recognised in the income statement.

Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
I n the course of preparing financial  s tatements , management necessari ly makes  judgements  and es mates  that can have a
s ignificant impact on the financial  s tatements . The es mates  and judgements  that are made are con nual ly evaluated,
based on historical  experience and other factors , including expecta ons of future events  that are bel ieved to be reasonable
under the ci rcumstances. The es mates  and judgements  that have a s ignificant risk of caus ing a  materia l  adjustment to the
financial  s tatements  within the next financial  year are outl ined below:

Significant accounting judgements
Management has  made the fol lowing judgements , which have the most s ignificant effect in terms of the amounts  recognised,
and their presentation, in the consol idated financial  s tatements .

Non-controlling interest put option accounting - IFRS 2 or IFRS 9
The key judgement is  whether the awards  are given beneficial ly as  a  result of employment, which can be determined where
there is  an expl ici t service condi on, where the award is  given to an exis ng employee, where the employee is  being paid
below market value or where there are other indicators  that the award is  a  reward for employment. I n such cases, the
awards  are accounted for as  a  share-based payment in exchange for employment services  under IFRS 2.

O therwise, where the holder held shares  prior to the Group acquiring the subs idiary, or gained the equity to start a
subs idiary us ing their unique ski l l s , and there are no indicators  i t should be accounted for under I F RS 2, then the award is
accounted for under IFRS 9.

Impairment - assessment of CGUs and assessment of indicators of impairment
I mpairment reviews are undertaken annual ly, or more frequently i f events  or changes  in ci rcumstances  indicate a  poten al
impairment. Assets  with finite l ives  are reviewed for indicators  of impairment (an impairment "trigger") and judgement is
appl ied in determining whether such a trigger has  occurred. External  and internal  factors  are monitored by management,
including a) adverse changes  in the economic or pol i cal  s i tua on of the geographic locale in which the underlying en ty
operates , b) heightened risk of cl ient loss  or chance of cl ient gain, and c) internal  repor ng sugges ng that an en ty's  future
economic performance is  be9er or worse than previous ly expected. W here management have concluded that such an
indication of impairment exists , then the recoverable amount of the asset i s  assessed.

The Group assesses  whether an impairment is  required by comparing the carrying value of the CGU assets  (including the
right-of-use assets  under I F RS 16) to their value in use. D iscounted cash flow models , based on the Group's  latest budget and



right-of-use assets  under I F RS 16) to their value in use. D iscounted cash flow models , based on the Group's  latest budget and
3 year financial  plan, and a long term growth rate, are used to determine the recoverable amount for the CGUs. The
appropriate es mates  and assump ons used require judgement and there is  s ignificant es ma on uncertainty. The results
of impairment reviews conducted at the end of the year are reported in note 14 (I ntangible Assets), note 15 (I nvestments  in
associates  and joint ventures), and note 17 (Leases).

The Group has  recognised a total  impairment charge of £564k in the year (2021: £3,294k), of which £728k relates  to
I ntangibles  (2021: £2,937k) and £164k relates  to the reversal  of a  previous  impairment of right-of-use assets , for a  property
which has  been sublet in 2022 (2021: £Ni l ). There was no impairment in the year of plant and equipment (2021: £Ni l ), or
associate investments  (2021: £357k).

Significant estimates and assumptions
Some areas  of the Group's  financial  s tatements  are subject to key assump ons and other s ignificant sources  of es ma on
uncertainty at the repor ng date, that have a s ignificant risk of caus ing a  materia l  adjustment to the carrying amounts  of
assets  and l iabi l i es  within the next financial  year. The Group has  based i ts  assump ons and es mates  on parameters
avai lable when the financial  s tatements  were prepared.

Deferred tax assets
The Group assesses  the future avai labi l i ty of carried forward losses  and other tax a9ributes , by reference to jurisdic on-
specific rules  around carry forward and u l isa on, and i t assesses  whether i t i s  probable that future taxable profits  wi l l  be
avai lable against which the attribute can be uti l i sed.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments          
The Group holds  certain financial  instruments , which are recorded on the balance sheet at fa i r value at the point of
recognition and remeasured at the end of each reporting period. At the year-end these relate to:

i .     equity investments  at FVTPL in non-l is ted l imited companies  (note 19); and

i i .    certain contingent cons ideration (note 13).

No formal  market exists  to trade these financial  instruments  and, therefore, their fa i r value is  measured by the most
appropriate valua on techniques  avai lable, which vary based on the nature of the instruments . The inputs  to the valua on
models  are taken from observable markets  where poss ible, but, where this  i s  not feas ible, judgement is  required to establ ish
fair values.

The bas is  of calcula on of the es mated fa ir value of these financial  instruments  (in addi on to sens i vity analyses  on the
estimates ' sa l ient inputs) i s  detai led in note 29.

Share-based incentive arrangements
Share-based incen ves  are valued at the date of the grant, us ing stochas c Monte Carlo pricing models  with non-market
ves ng condi ons. Typical ly, the value of these awards  is  directly related to the performance of a  par cular en ty of the
Group in which the employee holds  a  minori ty interest. The key inputs  to the pricing model  are risk-free interest rates , share
price vola l i ty and expected future performance of the en ty to which the award relates . Management apply judgement to
these inputs , us ing various  sources  of informa on, including the Group's  share price, experience of past performance and
publ ished data on risk-free interest rates  (government gi l ts ).

Detai ls  of awards  made in the year are shown in note 27.

Leasing estimates
Within IFRS 16, two estimates  are used for the recognition of new leases  and making amendments  to existing leases:

 

i . Deriva on of the interest rate used for discoun ng future cash flows - the discount rate used in the calcula on of
the lease l iabi l i ty involves  es ma on on a lease-by-lease bas is . This  involves  an es mate of incremental
borrowing costs , driven by the terri tory risk (which comprises  both the currency used and the risk-free rates  of that
country), the date of lease inception, and the lease term.

i i . An cipated length of lease term - I F RS 16 defines the lease term as  the non-cancel lable period of a  lease, together
with the op ons to extend or terminate a  lease, i f the lessee is  reasonably certain to exercise that op on. W here a
lease includes  the op on for the Group to extend the lease term, the Group takes  a  view, at incep on, as  to whether
i t i s  reasonably certain that the op on wi l l  be exercised. This  wi l l  take into account the length of  me remaining
before the op on is  exercisable, current trading, future trading forecasts  and the level  and type of any planned
capital  investment. The assessment of whether the op on wi l l  be exercised is  reassessed in each repor ng period.
A reassessment of the remaining l i fe of the lease could result in a  recalcula on of the lease l iabi l i ty and a materia l
adjustment to the associated balances.

 

 

Non-statutory accounts statement

The financial  informa on for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the year ended 31 December 2021 does  not cons tute
the company's  statutory accounts  for those years .

Statutory accounts  for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been del ivered to the Registrar of Companies . The statutory
accounts  for the year ended 31 December 2022 wi l l  be del ivered to the Registrar of Companies  in due course.

The auditor's  reports  on the accounts  for 31 December 2022 and 2021 were unqual ified, did not draw a9en on to any
matters  by way of emphasis , and did not contain any statement under 498(2) or 498(3) of the Companies  Act 2006.

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 .   H ead l in e resu l ts  an d  earn in gs  p er sh are                      

The analys is  below provides  a  reconci l iation between the Group's  Statutory results  and the Headl ine results  for the current
year.

 
 

Statutory
2022

Separately
disclosed items

(note 2)

Amortisation of
acquired

intangibles
(note 14)

Impairment of
non-current assets

(note 14 & 17)

 
 

FVTPL
investments

under IFRS 9 (note
19)

Revaluation of
contingent

consideration
(note 13)

Dividends paid
to IFRS 2 put

Year ended 31 December 2022 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Billings (unaudited) 597,520 - - - - -
Revenue 462,533 - - - - -
Net revenue 271,140 - - - - -
Staff costs 5 (198,765) 3,412 - - - -
Depreciation 16,17 (9,326) - - - - -

Amortisation 14 (1,060) - 597 - - -

Impairments 14,17 (564) - - 564 - -



Impairments 14,17 (564) - - 564 - -

Other operating charges (49,474) 9,940 - - (272) 266

Other losses 19 (1,403) - - - 1,403 -

Operating profit 10,548 13,352 597 564 1,131 266
Share of results of associates and JV 15 (10) - - - - -
Finance income 7 391 - - - - -

Finance expense 7 (5,506) - - - 456 -

Profit before taxation 8 5,423 13,352 597 564 1,587 266
Taxation 8 (5,178) (1,982) (174) - (409) -
Profit for the year 245 11,370 423 564 1,178 266
Non-controlling interests (155) - - - - -
Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Group**

90 11,370 423 564 1,178 266

* The non-control l ing interest charge is  moved to operating profi t due to underlying equity being defined as  a  IFRS 2 put

option.

** Headl ine earnings  are profi t attributable to equity holders  of the Group after adding back the adjustments  noted above.

  

1 . H ead l in e resu l ts  an d  earn in gs  p er sh are c o n tin u ed                   

The analys is  below provides  a  reconci l ia on between the Group's  Statutory results  and the Headl ine results  for the prior
year.

   
 
 

 
 

Statutory
2021

Separately
disclosed

items
(note 2)

Amortisation of
acquired

intangibles
(note 14)

Impairment of
non-current

assets
(note 14 & 15)

Gain on disposal
of subsidiaries

and related costs
(note 11)

Revaluation of
associates on
transition to

subsidiaries (note
15)

 
 

FVTPL
investments
under IFRS 9

(note 19)

Revaluation of
contingent

consideration
(note 13)

Year ended 31 December 2021 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Billings (unaudited) 533,350 - - - - - -
Revenue 394,575 -   -   -   -   -   -   
Net revenue 249,336 -   -   -   -   -   -   
Staff costs 5 (172,493) (3,975) - - 28 - -
Depreciation 16,17 (9,196) -   - - - - -

Amortisation 14 (1,412) -   965 - - - -
Impairments 14 (2,937) -   - 2,413 - - -
Other operating charges (39,573) 192 - - 97 - 664 532
Other gains 19 3,533 -   - - - - (3,533)

Operating profit 27,258 (3,783) 965 2,413 125 - (2,869) 532
Share of results of associates and JV 15 (190) -   -   -   -   234   -   
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 11 42 -   -   -   (42)   -   -   
Impairment of associate investment 15 (357) - - 357 - - -
Finance income 7 260 -   -   -   -   -   -   
Finance expense 7 (5,381) -   -   -   -   - 359
Profit before taxation 8 21,632 (3,783) 965 2,770 83 234 (2,510) 532
Taxation 8 (8,459) 743 (246) - - - 680
Profit for the year 13,173 (3,040) 719 2,770 83 234 (1,830) 532
Non-controlling interests (416) -   - - - - -
Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Group**

12,757 (3,040) 719 2,770 83 234 (1,830) 532

 

* The non-control l ing interest charge is  moved to opera ng profit due to underlying equity being defined as  a  I F RS 2 put

option.

**Headl ine earnings  are profi t attributable to equity holders  of the Group after adding back the adjustments  noted above.

 

H ead l in e resu l ts  an d  earn in gs  p er sh are c o n tin u ed                  

Earnings per share
Basic and di luted earnings  per share are calculated by dividing the appropriate earnings  metrics  by the weighted average
number of shares  of the Company in issue during the year.

Di luted earnings  per share is  calculated by adjus ng the weighted average number of the Company's  ordinary shares  in
issue on the assump on of convers ion of a l l  poten al ly di lu ve ordinary shares. An -di lu ve poten al  ordinary shares  are
excluded. The di lu ve effect of unvested outstanding op ons is  calculated based on the number that would vest had the
balance sheet date been the ves ng date. W here schemes have moved from equity to cash payment and vice-versa the
potentia l  di lution is  calculated as  though they had been in their year-end pos ition for the whole year.

 Headline
Year ended 31 December 2022 2022 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (£000) 90 18,105
Basic earnings per share
  Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) 122,257 122,257
  Basic EPS 0.07p 14.81p
Diluted earnings per share
  Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) as  above 122,257 122,257
  Add
   - LTIP 905 905
   - Put options 11,302 11,302
  Total 134,464 134,464
  Diluted EPS 0.07p 13.47p
   



   
 Excluding the put options  (payable in cash) (11,302) (11,302)
 Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) including di lutive shares 123,162 123,162
 Diluted EPS - excluding items the Group intends and is able to pay in cash 0.07p 14.70p

 

 
 
  Headline
Year ended 31 December 2021 2021 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (£000) 12,757 13,687
Basic earnings per share
  Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) 121,130 121,130
  Basic EPS 10.53p 11.30p
Diluted earnings per share
  Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) as  above 121,130 121,130
  Add
   - LTIP 178 178
   - Restrictive Shares 649 649
   - Deferred cons ideration (payable in cash) 695 695
   - Put options  (payable in cash) 13,342 13,342
  Total 135,994 135,994
  Diluted EPS 9.38p 10.06p
 135,994 135,994
 Excluding the deferred cons ideration (payable in cash) (695) (695)
 Excluding the put options  (payable in cash) (13,342) (13,342)
 Weighted average number of shares  (thousands) including di lutive shares 121,957 121,957
 Diluted EPS - excluding items the Group intends and is able to pay in cash 10.46p 11.22p

2 . S ep arately  d i sc lo sed  i tems          

Policy
Separately disclosed i tems include one off, non-recurring revenues or expenses. These are shown separately and are
excluded from Headl ine profi t to provide a better understanding of the underlying results  of the Group.

Analysis
Separately disclosed i tems for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise of the fol lowing:

 

2022
 
 

Operating
costs
£000

Staff costs
£000

Taxation
£000

After tax
total
£000

Takeover transaction costs 9,210 1,623 (1,294) 9,539
Strategic review and restructuring 992 1,789 (688) 2.093
Other (262) - - (262)
Total separately disclosed items 9,940 3,412 (1,982) 11,370
 

During 2022, the Company has  been subject to two compe ng bids  to take control  and ful l  ownership of the bus iness .
Managing the Company's  response to these two bids  has  resulted in a  number of external  advisory costs  and a refocus ing of
several  key internal  personnel  away from the day-to-day running of the bus iness . I ncluded in the above is  £811k related to
senior management costs  (including £360k represen ng C EO   me), as  an es mate of  me spent on the transac on where
they have been unable to undertake other planned strategic ac vi es  and day-to-day management of the bus iness . I n
addi on, incremental  bonus costs  were paid to several  key individuals  of £594k to reflect the s ignificant addi onal
workload they had to undertake.

I n 2022, the Group has  commenced a global  cost efficiency programme, with the ass istance of P ricewaterhouseCoopers  LLP.
The profess ional  fees  incurred in rela on to this  project have been class ified as  non-Headl ine (£992k). I n addi on, within
three of the agencies  in the Group, a  strategic review has  been commenced which has  resulted in staff redundancy costs  in
the year (£1,789k).

O ther separately disclosed i tems relate to the release of the provis ion associated with the F inancial  Conduct Authori ty
inves ga on, which is  now closed with no enforcement ac on being taken, the cost of which was previous ly treated as  non-
Headl ine. In addition, legal  fees  were incurred in relation to a  put option.

Separately disclosed i tems for the year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the fol lowing:

2021 
 
 

Operating
costs
£000

Staff costs
£000

Taxation
£000

After tax
total
£000

Strategic review and restructuring 192 (2,751) 466 (2,093)
Forgiveness  of US Payment Protection Program ("PPP") loan - (2,200) 462 (1,738)
Repayment of UK furlough money - 976 (185) 791
Total separately disclosed items 192 (3,975) 743 (3,040)
 

I n 2021, the Group recognised the repayment of the UK  furlough money that was  received in 2020 and the forgiveness  of the
US "P P P " loans  that were received in 2020. I ncluded within strategic review and restructuring are the release of a  long-term
incen ve plan accrual  for a  previous  employee who is  no longer part of the bus iness  (£1.8m of this  relates  to pre-2021), and
the lease surrender expense, due to restructuring of two lease spaces.

 

3 . S egmen ta l  in fo rmatio n        

Headline segmental income statement
Segmental  results  are reconci led to the income statement in note 1. The Board reviews Headl ine results .

The Group's  opera ng segments  are a l igned to those bus iness  units  that are evaluated regularly by the chief opera ng



The Group's  opera ng segments  are a l igned to those bus iness  units  that are evaluated regularly by the chief opera ng
decis ion maker ("CO D M"), namely, the Board, in making strategic decis ions, assess ing performance, and al loca ng
resources.

The opera ng segments  have historical ly comprised of individual  country en  es, the financial  informa on of which is
provided to the CO D M and is  aggregated into specific geographic regions  on a headl ine bas is , with each geographic region
considered a reportable segment. Each country included in that region has  s imi lar economic and opera ng characteris cs .
The products  and services  provided by en  es in a  geographic region are a l l  related to marke ng communica ons services
and general ly offer complementary products  and services  to their customers.

The Group's  performance is  a lso assessed under a  structure of specia l isms, and this  i s  reported under two segments:
Advertis ing and High Growth Special isms, excluding Group Central  Costs .

 

Segmental Information by Geography

 
 

 UK Europe Middle East
and Africa

Asia Australia Americas

Year Ended 31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000
 

£000 £000 £000

Net revenue  98,241  15,316  23,368  26,154  52,855  55,206
Operating profi t / (loss)  19,528  1,852  2,625  6,951  5,817  9,970
Operating profi t margin 19% 12% 11% 29% 11% 18%
Profi t / (loss) before tax  17,416  1,832  2,345  6,757  4,904  8,278

 

 
 

 UK Europe Middle East
and Africa

Asia Australia Americas

Year Ended 31 December 2021* £000 £000 £000
 

£000 £000 £000

Net revenue  95,104  15,207  20,216  23,324  53,997  41,488
Operating profi t / (loss)  17,837  1,929  2,842 7,331  5,832  7,525
Operating profi t margin 19% 13% 14% 31% 11% 18%
Profi t / (loss) before tax  17,426  1,906  2,430 6,702  5,257  6,441

*2021 figures have been restated to bring geographical split of Performance entities in line with internal management reporting.

I ncluded within the Group's  revenues is  a  customer that makes  up more than 10% of total  revenue, contribu ng £32.8m
(2021: £23.6m). This  i s  included within UK, Americas  and within the High Growth Special isms.

 

Segmental Information by Specialisms

 

 Advertising High Growth
Specialisms

Group Central
Costs

Total

Year Ended 31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000

Net revenue  124,300  146,840 -  271,140
Operating profi t / (loss)  11,728  35,015 (11,355)  35,388
Operating profi t margin 9% 24% - 13%
Profi t / (loss) before tax  9,928  31,604 (9,699)  31,833
 

 

 Advertising* High Growth
Specialisms*

Group Central
Costs

Total

Year Ended 31 December 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000

Net revenue  127,195  122,141  -  249,336
Operating profi t / (loss)  11,052  32,244 (12,160)  31,136
Operating profi t margin 9% 26% - 12%
Profi t / (loss) before tax  9,370  30,792 (12,848)  27,314
*In 2022 two agencies were included in High Growth Specialisms, compared to Advertising in 2021. The figures relating to these entities in 2021
were net revenue, £2,623k, operating loss, £175k and loss before tax, £156k. 

4 . R ev en u e f ro m c o n trac ts  w i th  c u sto mers                  

Bi l l ings  comprise a l l  gross  amounts  bi l led, or bi l lable, to cl ients  and is  s tated exclus ive of VAT and sales  taxes. Bi l l ings  is  a
non-GAAP  measure and is  included as  i t influences  the quantum of trade and other receivables  recognised at a  given date.
The difference between Bi l l ings  and Revenue is  represented by costs  incurred on behalf of cl ients  with whom en  es within
the Group operate as  an agent, and timing di fferences, where invoicing occurs  in advance or in arrears  of the related revenue
being recognised.

Net revenue is  a  non-GAAP  measure and is  reviewed by the CO D M and other stakeholders  as  a  key metric of bus iness
performance (note 3).

Revenue recognition policies

Revenue is  stated exclus ive of VAT and sales  taxes. Net revenue is  exclus ive of third-party costs  recharged to cl ients , where
enti ties  within the Group are acting as  principal .

Performance obligations
At the incep on of a  new contractual  arrangement with a  customer, the Group iden fies the performance obl iga ons
inherent in the agreement. Typical ly, the terms of the contracts  are such that the services  to be rendered are cons idered to be
either integrated or to represent a  series  of services  that are substan al ly the same with the same pa9ern of transfer to the
customer. Accordingly, this  amalgam of services  is  accounted for as  a  s ingle performance obl igation.

W here there are contracts  with services  which are dis nct within the contract, then they are accounted for as  separate



W here there are contracts  with services  which are dis nct within the contract, then they are accounted for as  separate
obl iga ons. I n these instances, the cons idera on due to be earned from the contract i s  a l located to each of the performance
obl igations, in proportion to their stand-alone sel l ing price.

Further discuss ion of performance obl iga ons aris ing in terms of the main types  of services  provided by the Group, in
addition to their typical  pattern of satis faction, i s  provided below.

Measurement of revenue
Based on the terms of the contractual  arrangements  entered into with customers, revenue is  typical ly recognised over  me.
This  i s  based on either the fact that (i ) the assets  generated under the terms of the contracts  have no al terna ve use to the
Group and there is  an enforceable right to payment, or (i i ) the cl ient exerts  editoria l  overs ight during the course of the
ass ignment such that they control  the service as  i t i s  provided.

Principal vs agent
W hen a third-party suppl ier i s  involved in fulfil l ing the terms of a  contract then, for each performance obl iga on iden fied,
the Group assesses  whether the Group is  ac ng as  principal  or agent. The primary indicator used in this  assessment is
whether the Group is  judged to control  the specified services  prior to the transfer of those services  to the customer. I n this
instance i t i s  typical ly concluded the Group is  acting as  principal .

W hen en  es within the Group act as  an agent, the revenue recorded is  the net amount retained. Costs  incurred with
external  suppl iers  are excluded from revenue. W hen the Group acts  as  principal  the revenue recorded is  the gross  amount
bi l led and when al lowable by the terms of the contract, out-of-pocket costs , such as  travel , are a lso recognised as  the gross
amount bi l led with a  corresponding amount recorded as  an expense.

Treatment of costs
Costs  incurred in rela on to the fulfilment of a  contract are general ly expensed as  incurred i f revenue is  recognised over
time.

Disaggregation of revenue

The Group monitors  the composition of revenue earned by the Group on a geographic bas is  and by special ism.

 

 Reported

Revenue 2022 2021 2022 vs 2021

Specialism £m £m Movement

Advertis ing* 221.8 193.8 14.5%
Media 36.6 33.1 10.6%
Issues 92.7 87.7 5.7%
Consulting* 45.9 39.5 16.1%
Pass ions* 65.5 40.5 61.6%
Group 462.5 394.6 17.2%
*Included in 2021 Advertis ing Revenue is  £2,441k relating to an agency recognised in Pass ions  in 2022 and £1,345k relating
to an agency recognised in Consulting in 2022. 

 Reported

Revenue 2022 2021 2022 vs 2021

Region £m £m Movement

UK 139.3 101.1 38.1%
Europe 24.9 26.9 (7.5)%
Middle East & Africa 53.0 37.9 39.8%
Asia 39.0 41.3 (5.7)%
Austral ia 89.5 82.8 8.%
Americas 116.8 104.6 11.5%
Group 462.5 394.6 17.2%
 

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Contract assets  and l iabi l i es  arise when there is  a  difference (general ly due to  ming) in the amount of revenue which can
be recognised and the amount which can be invoiced under the terms of the contractual  arrangement.

W here revenue earned from customers  is  recognised over  me, many of the Group's  contractual  arrangements  have terms
which permit the Group to remit invoices  for the amount of work performed to date on a specific contract (described in the
accoun ng pol icies  as  'right-to-invoice'). W here the terms of a  contractual  arrangement do not carry such right to invoice,
then a contract asset i s  recognised over time, as  work is  performed unti l  such point that an invoice can be remitted.

W here revenue earned from customers  is  recognised at a  point in  me, then this  wi l l  be dependent on sa sfac on of a
specific performance obl iga on. At such point, i t i s  usual  that there are no other condi ons required to be met for receipt of
cons idera on and, as  such, a  trade receivable should be recognised at the point the en ty's  right to cons idera on is
uncondi onal , which normal ly wi l l  be at the  me the P O  is  sa sfied (which may not be the same as  when an invoice is
raised).

Contract l iabi l i es  comprise instances  where a customer has  made payments  rela ng to services  prior to their provis ion.
Where payments  are received in advance, IFRS 15 requires  assessment of whether these cash transfers  contain any financing
component. Under the terms of the contractual  arrangements  entered into by en  es within the Group, there are no
instances  where such financing elements  arise. This  i s  the case even for those arrangements  where the Group receives
monies  more than a year in advance by vi rtue of the terms of the contractual  agreement so entered into.

The Group operates  a  standard 30 day credit terms pol icy. Al l  contract l iabi l i es  and contract assets  (other receivables  per
note 20) brought forward have been recognised in the current period.

Revenue recognition policies and performance obligation satisfaction by category of services performed

Further detai ls  regarding revenue recogni on and performance obl iga ons of the Group's  main service offerings  are
summarised below.

Provision of advertising and marketing services
The provis ion of adver s ing and marke ng services  to cl ients  typical ly meets  the cri teria  iden fied above for revenue to be
recognised over  me. The quantum of revenue to be recognised over the period of the ass ignments  is  ei ther based on the
'right-to-invoice' expedient or as  the services  are provided, depending on the contractual  terms. I n measuring the progress  of
services  provided in an ass ignment, the Group uses  an appropriate measure depending on the ci rcumstances, which may
include inputs  (such as  internal  labour costs  incurred) or outputs  (such as  media posts).  W here projects  are carried out
under contracts , the terms of which en tle an en ty within the Group to payment for i ts  performance only when a discrete
point i s  reached (such as  an event has  occurred or a  mi lestone has  been reached), then revenue is  recognised at the time that



point i s  reached (such as  an event has  occurred or a  mi lestone has  been reached), then revenue is  recognised at the time that
payment enti tlement occurs , i .e. at a  point in time.

The provis ion of adver s ing and marke ng services  can encompass  provis ion of a  range of media del iverables  in addi on
to development and deployment of a  media strategy. Regular assessment of the effec veness  of the project with regards  to
the objec ve of the contractual  arrangement may also be included. O Ren the range of services  provided within these
arrangements  is  cons idered to be integrated to an extent that no separable performance obl iga ons can be iden fied other
than a s ingle over-arching combined performance obl iga on rela ng to the del ivery of the project. I n these instances,
revenue is  recognised over  me as  the performance obl iga on is  being sa sfied depending on the ci rcumstances, which may
include inputs  (such as  internal  labour costs  incurred) or outputs  (such as  media posts).

W hen services  provided are cons idered separable, and not integrated, then mul ple performance obl iga ons are
recognised. Mul ple performance obl iga ons are most common in projects  where there are clearly separable conceptual
preparatory obl iga ons culmina ng in a  customer del iverable, such as  an event. I n these scenarios  the conceptual
prepara on element and the del iverable are concluded as  forming separate performance obl iga ons with the revenue and
corresponding cost of sales  (typical ly third-party pass-through costs) ass igned to the obl igation to which they relate.

W hi lst i t i s  uncommon for projects  to be such that revenue is  not able to be recognised over  me, examples  can occur. I n
these instances, the element of the transac on price ass igned to each performance obl iga on (in propor on to stand-alone
sel l ing prices) i s  recognised as  revenue once an obl iga on has  been ful ly sa sfied, for example an event has  occurred or a
mi lestone has  been reached.

The en ty within the Group enters  into retainer fees  that relate to arrangements  whereby the nature of the en ty's
contractual  promise is  to agree to 's tand-ready' to del iver services  to the customer for a  period of  me rather than to del iver
the goods or services  underlying that promise. Revenue rela ng to retainer fees  is  recognised over the period of the relevant
ass ignments  or arrangements , typical ly in l ine with the 's tand-ready' incurred costs .

W here fees  are remunerated to the agency in excess  of the services  rendered then a contract l iabi l i ty i s  recognised.
Conversely where the services  rendered are in excess  of the actual  fees  paid, then a contract asset i s  recognised when there
is  a  right to cons ideration.

Certain of these arrangements  have contractual  terms rela ng to the agency mee ng specific customer iden fied K P I s .  As  a
result, the overal l  level  of cons idera on can vary by increas ing or decreas ing as  a  result of performance against these K P I
metrics . To reflect this  variabi l i ty in the overal l  level  of cons idera on, management es mate the most l ikely outcome and
then reflect that outcome in the revenue recognised as  the performance obl iga on(s) of the contract are sa sfied. W hen
determining the l ikely ou9urn pos i on the es mated cons idera on is  such that i t i s  highly probable there wi l l  not be
s igni ficant reversal  of the revenue in the future. The estimated portion of the variable element is  recalculated at the earl ier of
the comple on of the contract or the next repor ng period and revenue is  adjusted accordingly. These es mates  are based
on historical  award experience, anticipated performance and best judgement at the time.

Commission based income in relation to media spend
The Group arranges  for third par es  to provide the related goods and services  to i ts  customers  in the capacity of an agent.
Revenue is  recognised in rela on to the amount of commiss ion the Group is  en tled to. O Ren addi onal  integrated services
are provided at the same  me with regards  to the development and deployment of an overarching media strategy. Due to the
integra on of the services  provided under the terms of the contract, management judgement is  appl ied to assess  whether
there is  a  s ingle combined performance obl igation.

The performance obl iga on for media purchases  is  cons idered to have been sa sfied when the associated adver sement
has  been purchased. In the majori ty of instances  where the Group purchases  media for cl ients , the Group is  acting as  agent.

Commission based income in relation to talent performance
Revenue in rela on to ta lent performance involves  the Group ac ng as  agent. Typical ly, such arrangements  have a s ingle, or
a sequence, of specific performance obl iga ons rela ng to the talent (or other third party) providing services . The
performance obl iga ons are general ly sa sfied at a  point in  me once the service has  been provided, at which point,
revenue is  recognised. The cons idera on for the services  is  normal ly for a  fixed amount (as  a  percentage of the talent's  fee)
with no degree of variabi l i ty.

Recognition of supplier discounts and rebates as revenue from contracts with customers
The Group receives  discounts  and rebates  from certain suppl iers  for transac ons entered into on behalf of cl ients , which the
cl ients  have agreed the Group can retain. W hen the contractual  terms of the agreements  entered into are such that the Group
acts  as  agent in these instances, then such rebates  are recognised as  revenue from contracts  with customers. By contrast,
when the contractual  terms of the agreements  are such that the Group is  ac ng as  principal  then such rebates  are
recognised as  a  reduc on in direct costs . Certain of the Group's  cl ients , however, have contractual  terms such that the
pricing of their contracts  i s  s tructured with the rebate being passed through to them.

5 . S taf f  c o sts     

Policy

Contribu ons to personal  pens ion plans  are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are due. Bonuses

are given on an ad hoc bas is , or as  otherwise agreed, and are accrued in the year to which the services  performed relate

(when there is  an expectation these wi l l  be awarded).

 
Staff costs (including Directors)

2022 2021

Year ended 31 December £000 £000

Wages and salaries 156,476 141,615

Social  securi ty costs  16,152 13,085

Pension costs 8,833 5,403

Other staff costs* 5,832 6,950

 Total 187,293 167,053

Allocations and dividends paid to holders of IFRS 2 put options 1 7,811 5,270
Share based incentive plans:
  Cash settled 27 2,432 (2,065)
  Equity settled 27 1,229 2,235

Total share based incentive plans  3,661 170
Total staff costs  198,765 172,493

*Other staff costs include profit share, LTIP charges and other staff benefits.

 



 

Staff numbers

  2022  2021

UK

 

772 734

Europe

 

166 161

Middle East and Africa 421 383

Asia 596 592

Austral ia 439 465

Americas

 

340 318

Total

 

2,734 2,653

 

These staff numbers  are based on the average number of staff throughout the year in 2022.

 

Pensions
The Group does  not operate any defined benefit pens ion schemes. The Group makes  payments , on behalf of certain
individuals , to personal  pens ion schemes.

 

Compensation for key management personnel and directors

2022 2021
Key management remuneration £000 £000
Wages and salaries 2,214 2,741
Pension costs 53 82
Share based payments* 381 268
Total 2,648 3,091
*Included within share based payments is £174k (2021: £220k) relating to Mickey Kalifa who left the Company in May 2022.

Key management personnel  include the Directors  and employees  responsible for planning, direc ng and control l ing the
activi ties  of the Group. 

6 . Au d i to rs '  remu n eratio n          

The Company paid the fol lowing amounts  to i ts  auditors  in respect of the audit of the financial  s tatements  and for other
services  provided to the Group:

2022
Year ended 31 December
 £000
Audit services

Fees  payable to the Company's  auditor for the audit of the Company's  annual  accounts 1,506

Fees  payable to associates  of the Company's  auditor for the audit of the accounts  of subs idiaries 174

Audit fees  relating to the prior period 300

 
 
 

1,980

Other services  provided by the Auditors :

Other assurance services  - interim agreed upon procedures 25

Corporate finance services 499

Taxation compl iance services 168  

Taxation advisory services 176

 
 
 
 

868

Total
 
 
 

2,848

 

7 . Net f in an c e exp en se       

Policy

I nterest income and expense, including fa ir value adjustments  to I F RS 9 put op ons, are recognised in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred, except for the amor sa on of loan costs  which are recognised over the l i fe of the
loan.

 

Analysis



 

Year ended 31 December 2022 2021
 £000 £000
Bank interest receivable 331 187
Other interest receivable 55 47
Sublease finance income 5 26
Financial income 391 260
Bank interest payable (1,200) (1,555)
Amortisation of loan costs (222) (130)
Interest on lease l iabi l i ties (2,970) (2,800)
Valuation adjustment to IFRS 9 put option l iabi l i ties  (Note 26) (1,114) (896) 
Financial expense (5,506) (5,381)
Net finance expense (5,115) (5,121)

8 . C u rren t taxatio n     

Policy

Current tax, including UK  and foreign tax, i s  provided for us ing the tax rates  and laws that have been substan vely enacted
at the balance sheet date.

 

Analysis

 

Income statement charge for year ended 31 December 2022 2021
£000 £000

Taxation in the year    
UK 730 1,832
Overseas 3,020 4,470
Withholding taxes  payable 14 31
Adjustment for (over) / under provis ion in prior periods (986) 1,476
Total  2,778 7,809
    
Deferred taxation
Recognition of temporary di fferences 1,719 1,651
Adjustment for under / (over) provis ion in prior periods 709 (974)
Effect of changes  in tax rates (28) (27)
Total  2,400 650
Total taxation  5,178 8,459
 

The differences  between the actual  tax and the standard rate of corpora on tax in the UK  appl ied to the Group's  statutory
profi t for the year are as  fol lows:

2022 2022 2021
Year ended 31 December £000 % £000
Profi t before taxation 5,423  21,632
Taxation at UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2019: 19.00%) 1,030 19.0% 4,110
Expenses  not deductible for tax 1,314 24.2% 386
Different tax rates  appl icable in overseas  jurisdictions 1,081 20.0% 1,467
Option charges  not deductible for tax 1,070 19.7% 925
Tax losses  for which no deferred tax asset was  recognised 834 15.4% 528
Impairment with no tax credit 138 2.5% 537
Withholding taxes  payable 14 0.3% 31
Tax effect of associates 2 0.0% 1
Effect of changes  in tax rates  on deferred tax (28) -0.5% (27)
Adjustment for tax (over)/under provis ion in prior periods (277) -5.1% 491
Effect of changes  in tax rates - 0.0% (6)
Disposal  of subs idiaries  on which no tax is  charged - 0.0% 16
Total taxation 5,178 95.5% 8,459
Effective tax rate 95.5% 39.1%

  

Large varia ons in future tax rates  of the statutory accounts  are expected due to s ignificant i tems such as  share-based
payments  (op on charges) and put op ons being non-deduc ble against corpora on tax as  a  result of these i tems being
capital  in nature.

The key di fferences  between actual  and standard tax rates  are as  fol lows:

·     Expenses  not deduc ble for tax: in 2022 two par es  tried to acquire the Company and a propor on of the
defence costs  was  disal lowable due to their being capital  in nature. This  increased the non-deduc ble
expenses. I n addi on, as  the world returned to normal  fol lowing the Covid-19 pandemic, there was increased
cl ient entertaining which is  disal lowable for corpora on tax purposes. There were also capital  a l lowances
resulting from office refurbishment that could not be cla imed.

·     O p on charges  include dividends paid to those shareholders  in the subs idiary companies  that a lso have a put
op on arrangement in place within that en ty, which are not deduc ble for tax: the Group's  share-based
payment schemes mostly relate to equity held in subs idiary companies . The Group general ly receives  no tax
benefi t on the exercise of these put options  nor on the payment of the dividends.

·     Different tax rates  appl icable in overseas  jurisdic ons. The Group operates  in mul ple loca ons round the
world where tax rates  are higher than the UK, e.g., Austral ia  (30%) and USA (between 21% to 28%).

·     The net effect of the adjustment for current and deferred tax in prior periods  is  a  release of an over provis ion of



·     The net effect of the adjustment for current and deferred tax in prior periods  is  a  release of an over provis ion of
£279k (2021: £491k under provis ion) of total  tax charge. 

·     I mpairment with no tax credit: O n most of the acquis i ons no tax benefit was  received from the acquis i on of
goodwi l l . During the period some of the goodwi l l  was  impaired with no future tax benefi t of such impairments .

Looking forward, UK  corpora on tax wi l l  increase from 19% to 25% from Apri l  2023. Large varia ons in future tax rates  are
expected due to s ignificant i tems such as  share-based payments  (op on charges), put op ons and investment in
subs idiaries  being non-deductible against corporation tax as  a  result of these i tems being capital  in nature.

Tax on Headline profits
As can be seen in the Headl ine tax reconci l ia on, the largest drivers  of Headl ine tax charge are the local  en  es'
profitabi l i ty with central  costs  being incurred in the UK , a  lower tax market, and profits  being made in higher tax countries
such as  Austral ia  and USA.

O ur Headl ine tax rate has  reduced from 26.6% to 24.5%. The reduc on is  due to the use of prior years ' tax losses  (caused in
part by the Covid-19 pandemic) to offset current profitabi l i ty and an increase in profits  from countries  with lower tax rates ,
partly offset by increased expenditure on disal lowable costs .

2022 2022
Year ended 31 December £000 %
Headl ine profi t before taxation (Note 1) 31,833  
Taxation at UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) 6,048 19.0%
Different tax rates  appl icable in overseas  jurisdictions 1,297 4.1%
Tax losses  for which no deferred tax asset was  recognised 683 2.1%
Expenses  not deductible for tax 781 2.5%
Effect of changes  in tax rates  on deferred tax 29 0.1%
Withholding taxes  payable 14 0.0% 
Tax effect of associates 2 0.0%
Adjustment for tax (over)/under provis ion in prior periods (246) -0.8%
Non-control l ing interest share of partnership income (818) -2.6%
Effect of changes  in tax rates - 0.0% 
Headline taxation (Note 1) 7,790 24.5%
Headl ine effective tax rate 24.5%  
 

9 . D eferred  taxatio n   

Policy
Deferred tax is  provided in ful l , us ing the l iabi l i ty method, on temporary differences  aris ing between the tax bases  of assets
and l iabi l i es  and their carrying amounts  in the consol idated financial  s tatements . Deferred tax is  not, however, provided
for temporary differences  that arise from: (i ) ini al  recogni on of an asset or l iabi l i ty in a  transac on other than a bus iness
combina on that at the  me of the transac on affects  neither accoun ng nor taxable profit or loss , (i i ) the ini al
recognition of goodwi l l .

Deferred tax is  determined us ing tax rates  (and laws) that have been enacted or substan vely enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset i s  real ised or the deferred tax l iabi l i ty i s  se9led. Deferred
tax assets  are recognised to the extent that i t i s  probable future taxable profit wi l l  be avai lable against which the temporary
di fferences  can be uti l i sed.

Deferred tax is  provided on temporary differences  aris ing on investments  in subs idiaries  and associates , except where the
 ming of the reversal  of the temporary difference is  control led by the Group and i t i s  probable that the temporary difference
wi l l  not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets  and l iabi l i es  are offset when there is  a  legal ly
enforceable right to offset current tax assets  against current tax l iabi l i es  and the Group intends to se9le i ts  current tax
assets  and current tax l iabi l i ties  on a net bas is .

Current and deferred tax is  recognised in profit or loss , except to the extent that i t relates  to i tems recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. I n this  case, the tax is  a lso recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Analysis

2022 2021
At 31 December £000 £000
Deferred tax assets 5,131 6,777
Deferred tax l iabi l i ties (1,245) (777)
Net deferred tax 3,886 6,000
 

The Deferred tax asset i s  recoverable against future profits , and future corpora on tax l iabi l i es.  The fol lowing table shows
the deferred tax asset / (l iabi l i ty) recognised by Group and movements  in 2022 and 2021.

In tan g ib les   
C ap i ta l   

a l lo w an c es       Tax lo sses 
P u rc h ased   

in v estmen ts    d i f feren c es    

£ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0  
At 3 1  D ec emb er 2 0 2 0         2 3 6   1 ,3 2 6    8 ,5 0 3    (4 6 5 )  
Exchange differences (16) (52) (337) -
Income statement (charge) / credit (47) 103 (4,460) (767)
Acquisitions (1,150) - 71 -
At 3 1  D ec emb er 2 0 2 1         (977) 1,377 3,777 (1,232)
Exchange differences 124 (15) (198) -
Income statement (charge) / credit 484 581 (1,561) 238
At 3 1  D ec emb er 2 0 2 2         (369) 1 ,9 4 3    2,018 (9 9 4 )  

 

Based on the 2023 budget and 3-year plans, approved by the Board, the Group has  reviewed the deferred tax asset created by
tax losses  for their recoverabi l i ty. W here the Group bel ieves  such losses  may not be recoverable they have not been
recognised on the balance sheet and have been included in unrecognised deferred tax assets .

W ithin the local  en  es £1,556k (2021: £3,101k) of deferred tax has  been natural ly offset. D isregarding this  offset, the spl i t



W ithin the local  en  es £1,556k (2021: £3,101k) of deferred tax has  been natural ly offset. D isregarding this  offset, the spl i t
of deferred tax is  as  fol lows:

 

In tan g ib les   
C ap i ta l   

a l lo w an c es       Tax lo sses 
P u rc h ased   

in v estmen ts  
Wo rk in g  c ap i ta l       

d i f feren c es    

£ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0    £ 0 0 0  
At 3 1  D ec emb er 2 0 2 1       

Deferred tax assets 47 1,377 3,777 -
Deferred tax liabilities (1,024) - - (1,232)
Net d eferred  tax   (977) 1,377 3,777 (1,232)
At 3 1  D ec emb er 2 0 2 2       

Deferred tax assets 706 1,943 2,304 -
Deferred tax liabilities (1,075) - (286) (994)
Net d eferred  tax   (369) 1,943 2,018 (994)
 

The working capital  differences  mostly relate to the tax effects  of working capital  in Austral ia  which calculates  tax on a cash
bas is  rather than the accruals  bas is  used in other countries ; a long with the con nuing tax effects  of the adop on of I F RS16
(Leases); and tax provis ion on any long term deferred bonuses.

UK  tax legis la on was implemented on 24 May 2021 which increased the UK  corpora on tax from 19% to 25% with effect
from 1 Apri l  2023. The effect on the revalua on of the deferred tax balance of this  change is  partly rel iant on future
projections  so i t i s  an estimate.

The unrecognised deferred tax assets  in respect of certain losses  in overseas  terri tories , referred to in the tables  above, have
not been recognised as  there is  insufficient certainty of future taxable profits  against which these would reverse. An
unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of carried forward tax losses  is  shown below:

Losses
Deferred

tax impact

£000 £000
At 1 January 2022 6,426 1,457
Exchange di fferences 772 180
Written off in year (1,158) (326)
Losses  uti l i sed in year (1,653) (465)
Losses  in year 6,246 1,299
At 31 December 2022 10,633 2,145
 

Expiry date of losses:

2022 2021
£000 £000

One to five years 24 -
Five to ten years 565 648
Ten years  or more 1,556 809
Total  2,145 1,457
 

1 0 . D iv id en d s      

Policy
I nterim dividends are recognised when they have been approved by the Board and are legal ly payable. F inal  dividends are
recognised when they have been approved by the shareholders  at the Company's  Annual  General  Meeting.

No interim or final  dividends were declared for 2021. No interim dividends were declared in 2022.

A final  dividend of 1.5 pence per share has  been recommended by the Board, which is  a  total  amount of £1,834k. The final
dividend, i f approved at the Company's  Annual  General  Mee ng on 14 June 2023, wi l l  be paid on 12 July 2023 to a l l
shareholders  on the Company's  register of members  as  at 9 June 2023. The ex-dividend date for the shares  is  8 June 2023.

The payment of this  dividend wi l l  not have any tax consequences  for the Group.

1 1 . D isp o sa ls     

Policy

Disposals  of en  es in the Group are accounted for in accordance with I F RS 10:25. W hen the parent's  ownership of a
subs idiary company changes  and results  in the parent's  loss  of control  of a  subs idiary within the Group, the parent:

·     derecognises  the assets  and l iabi l i es  a9ributable to the former subs idiary from the consol idated balance
sheet;

·     recognises  any investment retained in the former subs idiary when control  i s  lost and subsequently accounts
for i t and for any amounts  owed by or to the former subs idiary in accordance with relevant I F RS standards;
and

·     recognises  the gain or loss  associated with the loss  of control  attributable to the former control l ing interest.
 

Analysis

There were no disposals  in 2022.

The Board made a strategic decis ion at the start of 2020 to el iminate loss-making bus inesses  from the Group by the end of
the year, which was communicated to the market and to shareholders . This  process  con nued into 2021, with four en  es
either ceas ing trading or being divested. These en  es were Crea ve Spark (P ty) Ltd, M&C Saatchi  P R LLP, M&C Saatchi
Marketing Arts  Ltd and Create Col lective PTE Ltd. These enti ties  contributed £39k of losses  to the 2021 results .

The Headl ine results  of the enti ties  disposed, which were included in the results , were as  fol lows:

2022 2021

https://library.croneri.co.uk/cch_uk/iast/ifrs10-201105&p=#25


2022 2021
£000 £000

Plant and equipment - 2

Trade and other receivables - 21

Cash and cash equivalents - 2

Trade and other payables - (67)

Add net liabilities - (42)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 42
 
Within note 1 in 2021, there are costs  of £125k that relate to severance and legal  fees  for the disposal .
 

 
 

1 2 . Ac q u is i t io n s  o f  su b s id iaries                

There were no acquis i tions  in 2022.
 
O n 2 February 2021, the Group acquired two en  es that were previous ly associates , 40% of M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Ltd
and 25.1% of Santa C lara Par cipações  Ltda. I n addi on, on 1 January 2021, the Group had control  of the 51% held in M&C
Saatchi  World Services  Pakistan (P vt) Ltd , therefore obtaining control  of the three en  es. M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong)
Limited's  primary activi ty i s  consultancy, and both Santa Clara Participações  Ltda and M&C Saatchi  World Services  Pakistan
(Pvt) Ltd are marketing agencies , these qual i fy as  a  bus iness  as  defined in IFRS 3.
 

The amounts  recognised in 2021, in respect of the iden fiable assets  acquired and l iabi l i es  assumed are as  set out in the
table below.

M&C Saatchi (Hong
Kong)
£000s

Santa Clara
£000s

Pakistan
£000s

Financial  assets 4,158 1,879 482
Property, plant and equipment 284 29 48  
Identi fiable intangible assets 1,653 2,211 -
Financial  l iabi l i ties (3,395) (3,472) (530)
Deferred tax l iabi l i ties (343) (736) -
Total identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed  2,357 (89)  -
Plus: goodwi l l  2,677 1,945 -
Net assets acquired  5,034 1,856 -

Satisfied by:    
Equity instruments 2,627 1,856 -
Fair value of associate investment 2,407 - -
Total consideration transferred 5,034 1,856 -

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:    
Cash and cash equivalent balances  acquired 750 513 29

750 513 29

 

1 3 .     D eferred    an d  c o n tin gen t c o n s id eratio n            

Policy

Certain acquis i ons made by the Group include con ngent or deferred cons idera on, the quantum of which is  dependent on
the future performance of the acquired enti ty. Such cons ideration is  recorded at fa i r value in l ine with IFRS 13 (note 29).

The balances  are remeasured at the earl ier of ei ther the end of each repor ng period or crystal l i sa on of the cons idera on
payment. The movements  in the fa ir value are recognised in profi t or loss .

Analysis

 Liabilities 2022 2021
£000 £000

Current   
Deferred cons ideration
Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Limited - (984)
Total current - (984)

 

 Assets 2022 2021
£000 £000

Non-current   
Contingent cons ideration
Saatchinvest Ltd 914 -
Total non-current 914 -

 Movements in liabilities in the year 2022 2021
£000 £000

At 1 January (984) (1,679)
Exchange di fferences - 48
Charged to the income statement * (266) (532)



Charged to the income statement * (266) (532)
Conditional  cons ideration paid in cash ** 1,250 659
Conditional  cons ideration paid in equity - 520
At 31 December - (984)

 

* £266k revaluation of deferred consideration due to Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Limited on payment

** £1,250k paid to Levergy Marketing Agency (Pty) Limited.

 Movements in assets in the year 2022 2021
£000 £000

At 1 January - -

Reclass i fication from financial  assets  at fa i r value through profi t or loss  (note 19) *** 914 -
At 31 December 914 -
 

*** The £914k of con ngent considera on relates to the sale of Dataseat Ltd ("Dataseat"), one of the en  es in the Group's porTolio of unlisted companies, in which it held a 5.18%
shareholding. The sale to Verve Group took place in July 2022, and £779k of cash was received as ini al considera on. Verve Group is part of Media and Games Invest Se ("MGI"), a
Swedish company which is listed on the Nasdaq Market in Stockholm and in the Scale segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. Two further tranches of considera on may be received, on
which the Group has undertaken a probability assessment in determining the value recognised:

Tranche 2:

Up to £534k to be received as cash or MGI shares. The exact amount to be received will be reduced proportionately based on:
1) one or both of the two Dataseat founders leaving the employment of Dataseat before July 2025,
2) if they leave, the terms and timing of their departures,
3) whether the consideration is paid in cash or shares. Receiving shares results in a maximum consideration of £534k rather than £485k, and the minimum is 0.

Tranche 3:

Up to £924k to be received as cash or MGI shares as part of an earn-out calculation. The earn-out consideration is dependent on Dataseat's 2024 net revenue and must be paid by August
2025. The con ngent considera on was calculated following a review of Dataseat's future prospects and poten al net revenues and involved sensi vity analysis of different revenue
scenarios. Receiving any earn-out considera on is also dependent on the two founders remaining employed by Dataseat un l July 2025. The maximum considera on which could be
received for tranche 3 is £1,458k and the minimum is 0, this has been valued at £426k.

1 4 . In tan g ib le assets      

Policy
Intangible assets  are carried at cost less  accumulated amortisation and impairment losses .

Cost
Goodwill
Under the acquis i on method of accoun ng for bus iness  combina ons, goodwi l l  i s  the fa ir value of cons idera on
transferred, less  the net of the fa ir values  of the identi fiable assets  acquired and the l iabi l i ties  subsumed.

Other intangibles acquired as part of a business combination
I ntangible assets  acquired as  part of a  bus iness  combina on (which includes  brand names and customer rela onships) are
capital ised at fa i r value, i f they are ei ther separable or arise from contractual  or other legal  rights  and their fa i r value can
be rel iably measured.

Software & film
P urchased soRware, and internal ly created soRware and film rights  are recorded at cost. I nternal ly created soRware and
fi lm rights  are created so that they can be directly used to generate future cl ient income.

Amortisation
Goodwi l l  i s  not amor sed. Amor sa on of other classes  of intangible assets  i s  charged to the income statement on a
straight-l ine bas is  over their estimated useful  l ives  as  fol lows:

Software and fi lm rights :   3 years
Customer relationships: 1 to 8 years
Brand name: 1 to 10 years
                               

The Group has  no indefini te l i fe intangibles  other than goodwi l l .

Impairment
Goodwi l l  and other intangibles  are reviewed for impairment annual ly or more frequently i f events  or changes  in
circumstances  indicate that the assets  may be impaired.

I mpairment losses  arise when the carrying amount of an asset or CGU is  in excess  of the recoverable amount, and these
losses  are recognised in the income statement. Al l  recoverable amounts  are from future trading (i .e., their value in use) and
not from the sale of unrecognised assets  or other intangibles .

The value in use calcula ons have been based on the forecast profitabi l i ty of each CGU, us ing the 2023 budget and 3-year
plans  approved by the Board, with a  res idual  growth rate of 1.5% p.a. appl ied thereaRer. This  forecast data is  based on past
performance and current bus iness  and economic prospects . A discount rate is  then appl ied to create a  discounted future
cash flow forecast (D C F) for each CGU, which forms the bas is  for determining the recoverable amount of each CGU. I f the D C F
of a  CGU is  not in excess  of i ts  carrying amount (that includes  the value of i ts  fixed assets  and right-of-use assets), then an
impairment loss  would be recognised.

I n conduc ng the review, a  res idual  growth rate of 1.5% has  been used for a l l  countries . Market betas  of 1.0 have been used
for Brazi l , South Africa and China, whi le 1.4 has  been used for India and 1.2 has  been used for rest of the world.

P re-tax discount rates  are based on the Group's  nominal  weighted average cost of capital  adjusted for the specific risks
relating to the country and market in which the CGU operates .

 

Key assumptions used for impairment review

 

Residual
growth

rates 2022

Residual
growth

rates 2021

Pre-tax
discount

rates 2022

Pre-tax
discount

rates 2021

Market

 

 

% % % %

UK 1.5 1.5 16-18 14-17

Asia and Austral ia 1.5 1.5 15-18 16-19

Middle East 1.5 1.5 15 17

India 1.5 1.5 23 23



India 1.5 1.5 23 23

South Africa 1.5 1.5 27 28

Europe 1.5 1.5 12 15

Americas 1.5 1.5 14-16 15-18

 

Analysis

Goodwill
£000

Brand
name
£000

 Customer
relationships

£000

Software and
film rights

£000
Total
£000

Cost      
At 31 December 2020 54,308 7,348 11,151 4,359 77,166
Exchange di fferences (493) (73) (1) (46) (613)
Acquired - bus iness  combinations 4,621 919 2,901 45 8,486
Acquired - - - 837 837
Disposal - - - (1,963) (1,963)
At 31 December 2021 58,436 8,194 14,051 3,232 83,913
Exchange di fferences 2,258  169  355 145 2,927
Acquired - - 200 992  1,192
Disposal - - - (678) (678)
At 31 December 2022 60,694  8,363  14,606 3,691 87,354
      
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 31 December 2020 20,855 7,027 10,731 2,030 40,643
Exchange di fferences (295) (79) (20) (45) (439)
Amortisation charge - 181 784 447 1,412
Impairment 1,900 - - 1,037 2,937
Disposal - - - (1,139) (1,139)
At 31 December 2021 22,460 7,129 11,495 2,330 43,414
Exchange di fferences 489  28  57 113  687
Amortisation charge -  104  493 463  1,060
Impairment 556 - - 172  728
Disposal - - - (503) (503)
At 31 December 2022 23,505  7,261  12,045 2,575 45,386
      
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 33,453 321 420 2,329 36,523
At 31 December 2021 35,976 1,065 2,556 902 40,499
At 31 December 2022 37,189  1,102  2,561 1,116 41,968

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Goodwill
 
Cash generating units (CGUs)

31 December
2022
£000

31 December
2021
£000 Region

Shepardson Stern + Kaminsky LLP 5,899 5,375 Americas
LIDA NY LLP (MCD) 5,821 5,198 Americas
Clear Ideas  Ltd 5,031 5,031 Europe
M&C Saatchi  Mobi le Ltd 4,283 4,283 UK
M&C Saatchi  Agency Pty Ltd (Austral ia) 2,863 2,719 Austral ia
M&C Saatchi  Socia l  Ltd 2,612 2,612 UK
M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Limited* 2,506 2,806 Asia
Bohemia Group Pty Ltd (Austral ia) 1,904 1,812 Austral ia
M&C Saatchi  Advertis ing GmbH 1,376 1,306 Europe
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment Ltd 1,184 1,184 UK
Levergy Marketing Agency (PTY) Limited (South Africa) 860 820 Middle East and Africa
M&C Saatchi  Merl in Ltd 765 765 UK
M&C Saatchi  Middle East Fz LLC (Dubai) 765 684 Middle East and Africa
M&C Saatchi  Talk Ltd 625 625 UK
Santa Clara Participações  Ltda 624 529 Americas
M&C Saatchi  (M) SDN BHD 71 68 Asia
Scarecrow Communications  Ltd* - 159 Asia
Total 37,189 35,976  
* With exception of CGUs marked, all other movements in the table above are due to foreign exchange differences.

The 2022 review of goodwi l l  was  undertaken as  at 31 December, and resulted in the impairments  of M&C Saatchi  (Hong
Kong) Limited £396k and Scarecrow Communications  Ltd £160k (2021: £500k).

The fol lowing sens i vity analys is  has  been performed, showing the impairment required, i f the profit forecasts  reduced and
the discount rates  increased. The CGUs included in this  sens i vity analys is  are those for which a reasonably poss ible
change in a  key assump on could give rise to impairment, being Bohemia Group P ty Ltd (Austral ia), Levergy Marke ng
Agency (PTY) Limited (South Africa), M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Limited and Santa C lara Par cipações  Ltda (Brazi l ). These
enti ties  remain at risk of impairment.

        Annual profit forecast reduced by
Discount rates increased by 0% 10% 20% 30%
0% - 603 2,114 3,490
1% - 1,272 2,653 3,913
3% 1,072 2,345 3,519 4,593
5% 2,069 3,168 4,184  5,116
 

 

1 5 . In v estmen ts  in  asso c iates  an d  jo in t v en tu res                   

Policy

The Group invests  in associates  and joint ventures , ei ther to del iver i ts  services  to a  strategic marketplace, or to gain
strategic mass  by being part of a  larger local  or functional  enti ty.



strategic mass  by being part of a  larger local  or functional  enti ty.

An associate is  an en ty over which the Group has  s ignificant influence. S ignificant influence is  the power to par cipate in
the financial  and operating pol icy decis ions  of the investee, but i t i s  neither control  nor joint control  over those pol icies .

The carrying value of these investments  comprise the Group's  share of their net assets  and any purchased goodwi l l . These
carrying amounts  are reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine whether there is  any indication of impairment.

Analysis

Investment in associates
Proportion of ownership

interest held at 31 December
   2022 2021 2022

Region & Name Nature of business
Country of incorporation
or registration £000 £000  

Europe
Cometis  SARL* Advertis ing France 56 - 49%
M&C Saatchi  Li ttle Stories  SAS PR France - - 25%
M&C Saatchi  SAL Advertis ing Lebanon - - 10%
Asia and Australia
Love Frankie Ltd Advertis ing Thai land 135 202 25%
February Communications  Private Limited Advertis ing India - - 20%
M&C Saatchi  Limited Advertis ing Japan - - 25%
Total   191 202  

* In January 2022, as a result of two put option arrangements, the Group acquired a 49% holding in Cometis SARL, a French company.
 

M&C Saatchi  SAL has  the fol lowing subs idiaries : M&C Saatchi  Mena Ltd and Al  Dal lah For Creativi ty & Des ign LLC.

Al l  shares  in associates  are held by subs idiary companies  in the Group. W here an associate has  the right to use the brand
name, the Group holds  the right to withdraw such use, to protect i t from damage.

The Group holds  neither associates  nor joint ventures  in Austral ia , Africa, or the UK.

 

2022 2021
Balance sheet value as at 31 December £000 £000
Investments  intended to be held in the long term 191 202
Investments  categorised as  held-for-sale - -
Total associate investments 191 202
 

 2022 2021

Balance sheet movements £000 £000

At 1 January 202 2,829

Exchange movements (1) (10)

Transferred to subs idiary - (2,407)

Revaluation of associates  on trans ition to subs idiaries - (234)

Acquis i tion of associates - 338

Impairment of associate - (357)

Share of (loss) / profi t after taxation (10) 43

At 31 December 191 202

 

 2022 2021

Income statement £000 £000

Share of (loss) / profi t after taxation (10) 43

Revaluation of associates  on trans ition to subs idiaries - (233)

Share of result of Associates and Joint Ventures (10) (190)

Impairment of associate investment - (357)

Year to 31 December (10) (547)

 

The results  and net assets  of the associate en  es are set out below, a long with the Group's  share of these results  and net
assets :

2020
 

2022  2021

Asia Europe
 

Total Asia Europe Americas
Income statement £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 4,006 712 4,718 4,240 2,580 148

Operating profi t / (loss) 765 165 930 940 71 (14)



Operating profi t / (loss) 765 165 930 940 71 (14)

Profi t / (loss) before taxation (201) 143 (58) 215 71 (25)

Profi t / (loss) after taxation (208) 113 (95) 174 49 (32)

Group's share (65) 55 (10) 43 12 (12)

Dividends received - - - - -

 

2022  2021
 

Asia Europe Total Asia Europe Americas*
Balance sheet £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total  assets 1,557 151 1,708 1,410 804

Total  l iabi l i ties (1,088) (38) (1,126) (914) (854)

Net assets  / (l iabi l i ties) 469 113 583 496 (50)

Our share 117 56 173 124 (12)

Losses  not recognised 13 - 13 12 12

Goodwi l l 5 - 5 66 -

Total 135 56 191 202 -

* Technology, Humans and Taste LLC was disposed of in 2021, therefore an income statement is shown above, but nil for the balance sheet at 31 December 2021.

 

1 6 . P lan t an d  eq u ip men t         

Policy

Tangible fixed assets  are stated at historical  cost less  accumulated deprecia on. Deprecia on is  provided to write off the
cost of a l l  fixed assets , less  estimated res idual  values, evenly over their expected useful  l ives .

Depreciation is  calculated at the fol lowing annual  rates:

Leasehold
improvements      

- Lower of useful  l i fe and over the period of the lease

Furniture and fi ttings - 10% straight-l ine bas is
Computer equipment    
          

- 33% straight-l ine bas is

Other equipment - 25% straight-l ine bas is
Motor vehicles - 25% straight-l ine bas is
                                               

The need for any fixed asset impairment write-down is  assessed by a  comparison of the carrying value of the asset against
the higher of a) the fa ir value less  costs  to sel l , or b) the value in use.

Assets  under construc on are recognised at cost and only commence deprecia on once the assets  are completed and ready
for use.

 

Analysis

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture,
fittings and

other
equipment

Computer
equipment Motor vehicles Total

Cost £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2020 8,490 4,021 4,845 17 17,373
Exchange di fferences (114) (48) (86) 21 (227)
Additions 145 266 1,352 26 1,789
Additions  - bus iness  combinations 3 152 177 29 361
Disposals (1,228) (473) (456) (15) (2,172)
At 31 December 2021 7,296 3,918 5,832 78 17,124
Exchange di fferences 324 121 259 4 708
Additions* 1,145 1,674 1,551 13 4,383
Disposals (1,596) (1,066) (404) - (3,066)
At 31 December 2022 7,169 4,647 7,238 95 19,149
 
Depreciation
At 31 December 2020 4,084 2,645 3,485 2 10,216
Exchange di fferences 84 50 53 4 191
Depreciation charge 802 409 1,001 25 2,237
Disposals (940) (449) (449) (15) (1,853)
At 31 December 2021 4,030 2,655 4,090 16 10,791
Exchange di fferences 230 53 183 3 469
Depreciation charge 990 381 1,087 22 2,480
Disposals (1,579) (926) (396) - (2,901)
At 31 December 2022 3,671 2,163 4,964 41 10,839
      
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 4,406 1,376 1,360 15 7,157
At 31 December 2021 3,266 1,263 1,742 62 6,333
At 31 December 2022 3,498 2,484 2,274 54 8,310
* The addi ons in 2022 relate mainly to Australia for the lease that was entered into at the end of 2021 (£745k of Leasehold Improvements and £1,225k of furniture, fiVngs and other
equipment)

 

Total  depreciation in the income statement is  broken down as  fol lows:



Total  depreciation in the income statement is  broken down as  fol lows:

Note
2022
£000

2021
£000

From plant and equipment 16 2,480 2,237
From right-of-use assets 17 6,846 6,959
  9,326 9,196
 

1 7 . Leases 

The Group leases  various  assets , compris ing proper es, equipment, and motor vehicles . The determina on whether an
arrangement is , or contains , a  lease is  based on whether the contract conveys  a  right to control  the use of an iden fied asset
for a  period of time in exchange for cons ideration. 

Policy
The fol lowing sets  out the Group's  lease accoun ng pol icy for a l l  leases , with the excep on of leases  with a  term of 12
months  or less  and those of low value assets . I n both these instances  the Group appl ies  the exemp ons permiss ible by I F RS
16 Leases. These are typical ly expensed to the income statement as  incurred.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
At the inception of a  lease, the Group recognises  a  right-of-use asset and a lease l iabi l i ty.

The value of the lease l iabi l i ty i s  determined by reference to the present value of the future lease payments , as  determined at
the incep on of the lease. Lease l iabi l i es  are disclosed separately on the balance sheet. These are measured at amor sed
cost, us ing the effec ve interest rate method. Lease payments  are appor oned between a finance charge and a reduc on of
the lease l iabi l i ty, based on a constant interest rate appl ied to the remaining balance of the l iabi l i ty. I nterest expense is
included within net finance costs  in the consol idated income statement. The interest rate appl ied to a  lease is  typical ly the
incremental  borrowing rate of the en ty entering into the lease. This  i s  as  a  result of the interest rates  impl ici t in the leases
not being readi ly determined. The incremental  borrowing rate appl ied by each relevant en ty is  determined based on the
interest rate adjudged to be required to be paid by that en ty to borrow a s imi lar amount over a  s imi lar term for a  s imi lar
asset in a  s imi lar economic environment.

A corresponding right-of-use fixed asset i s  a lso recognised at an equivalent amount adjusted for a) any ini al  direct costs ,
b) payments  made before the commencement date (net of lease incen ves), and c) the es mated cost for any restora on
costs  the Group is  obl igated to at lease incep on. Right-of-use assets  are subsequently depreciated on a straight-l ine bas is
over the shorter of the lease term or the asset's  es mated l i fe. Under I F RS 16, right-of-use assets  are tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets ', when there is  an indication of impairment.

Lease term
The lease term comprises  the non-cancel lable period of the lease contract. Periods  covered by an op on to extend the lease
are included, i f the Group has  reasonable certainty that the op on wi l l  be exercised. Periods  covered by an op on to
terminate are included, i f i t i s  reasonably certain that this  option wi l l  not be exercised.

Lease payments
Lease payments  comprise fixed payments  and variable lease payments  (that depend on an index or a  rate, ini al ly measured
using the minimum index or rate at incep on date). Payments  include any lease incen ves  and any penalty payments  for
termina ng the lease, i f the lease term reflects  the lessee exercis ing that op on. The lease l iabi l i ty i s  subsequently
remeasured (with a  corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) when there is  a  change in future lease
payments  due to a) a  renego a on or market rent review, b) a  change of an index or rate, or c) a  reassessment of the lease
term.

Lease modifications
W here there are s ignificant changes  in the scope of the lease, then the arrangement is  reassessed to determine whether a
lease modifica on has  occurred and, i f there is  such a modifica on, what form i t takes. This  may result in a  modifica on of
the original  lease or, a l ternatively, recognition of a  separate new lease.

Subleases
At  mes, en  es of the Group wi l l  sublet certain of their proper es  when their underlying bus iness  requirements  change.
Under I F RS 16, the Group assesses  the class ifica on of these subleases  with reference to the right-of-use asset, not the
underlying asset.

W hen the Group acts  as  an intermediate lessor, i t accounts  for i ts  interests  in the head lease and the sublease separately. At
lease commencement, a  determina on is  made whether the lease is  a  finance lease or an opera ng lease. To class i fy each
lease, the Group makes  an overal l  assessment of whether the lease transfers  to the lessee substan al ly a l l  of the risks  and
rewards  of ownership in rela on to the underlying asset. I f this  i s  the case, then the lease is  a  finance lease; i f not, then i t i s
an opera ng lease. The Group recognises  lessor payments  under opera ng leases  as  sublease income on a straight-l ine
bas is  over the lease term. The Group accounts  for finance leases  as  finance lease receivables , us ing the effec ve interest
rate method.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group appl ies  the short-term lease recogni on exemp on to those leases  that have a lease term of 12 months  or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a  purchase op on. I t a lso appl ies  the lease of low-value assets  recogni on
exemption to leases  of office equipment that are cons idered of low value (defined by the Group as  being below £3,000). Lease
payments  on short-term leases  and leases  of low-value assets  are recognised as  an expense on a straight-l ine bas is  over the
lease term.

Estimates relating to leases
The Group has  made estimates  in determining the interest rate used for discounting of future cash flows, and the lease term.

Analysis

Set out below are the carrying amounts  of right-of-use assets  and lease l iabi l i es  recognised, and the movements  during the
year:

 

Land &
Buildings

Computer
equipment

Motor
vehicles

 
Total

Right-of-use assets £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2021 33,208 716 82 34,006
Additions 16,802  24 60 16,886
Modifications 1,048  9 34 1,091
Disposals (394) (4) - (398)
Depreciation (6,563) (309) (87) (6,959)
Foreign exchange (209) (14) (6) (229)
At 1 January 2022 43,892  422 83 44,397
Additions 3,966 395 134 4,495



Additions 3,966 395 134 4,495
Modifications 950 - 24 974
Disposals (96) (116) (49) (261)
Depreciation (6,495) (267) (84) (6,846)
Reversal  of impairment 164 - - 164
Sublease (164) - - (164)
Foreign exchange 1,203 29 1 1,233
At 31 December 2022 43,420 463 109 43,992
 

 

Land &
Buildings

Computer
equipment

Motor
vehicles

 
Total

Lease liabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2021 45,573 767 81 46,421
Additions 16,789 24 50 16,863
Modifications 823 9 34 866
Disposals (425) (4) 0 (429)
Accretion of interest 2,766 31 3 2,800
Payments (8,557) (358) (95) (9,010)
Reclass i fication* (211) - - (211)
Foreign exchange (426) (24) (5) (455)
At 1 January 2022 56,332 445 68 56,845
Additions 3,966 395 134 4,495
Modifications 260 - 24 284
Disposals (132) (94) (50) (276)
Accretion of interest 2,945 21 4 2,970
Payments (9,889) (308) (80) (10,277)
Foreign exchange 1,508 20 1 1,529
At 31 December 2022 54,990 479 101 55,570
*This relates to lease dilapidations which were reclassified to Provisions in 2021.

The additions  in 2022 predominately relate to the new offices  in Berl in (Germany), Sydney and Melbourne (Austral ia).

Of lease payments  made in the year of £10,277k (2021: £9,010k), £7,307k (2021: £6,210k) related to payment of principal  on
the corresponding lease l iabi l i es  and the balance to payment of  interest £2,970k (2021: £2,800k) due on the lease
l iabi l i ties . 

Lease liabilities Land & Buildings Computer equipment Motor vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts  due within one year 6,196 196 56 6,448
Amounts  due after one year 48,794 283 45 49,122
At 31 December 2022 54,990 479 101 55,570
 
 
 
    
Amounts  due within one year 6,624 283 43 6,950
Amounts  due after one year 49,708 162 25 49,895
At 31 December 2021 56,332 445 68 56,845
    

Income statement charge
 

2022
£000

2021
£000

 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (6,846) (6,959)  

Short-term lease expense (505) (300)  

Low-value lease expense (68) (263)  

Short-term sublease income - 94  

Right-of-use asset impairment* 164 -  

Charge to operating profit (7,255) (7,428)  

Sublease finance income 5 26  

Lease l iabi l i ty interest expense (2,970) (2,800)  

Lease charge to profit before tax (10,220) (10,202)  

*This  i s  the reversal  of an impairment from 2020, as  the impaired asset was  sublet during 2022.

The Group does  not face a  s ignificant l iquidity risk with regard to i ts  lease l iabi l i es  and manages  them in l ine with i ts
approach to other month-to-month l iquidity matters , as  described in note 30.

The cash payment maturi ty of the lease l iabi l i ties  held as  at 31 December 2022, net of sublease receipts , i s  as  fol lows:

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Future cash payments
 

2022
£000

2021
£000

Period ending 31 December:   
2023 9,026 8,074
2024 8,149 6,730
2025 7,870 6,689
2026 6,935 5,922
2027 6,415 5,716
Later years 31,363 30,227
Gross future liability before discounting 69,758 63,358
 

O f the future lease payments  post-2027, £21.8m relates  to a  s ingle office lease which expires  in 2034. This  lease agreement
was entered into in December 2019.



1 8 . O th er n o n -c u rren t assets         

 

2022 2021
At 31 December £000 £000
Other debtors  including rent deposits 1,107 1,113
Loans to employees - 98
Total other non-current assets 1,107 1,211

1 9  . F in an c ia l  assets  at fa i r v a lu e th ro u gh  p ro f i t  an d  lo ss  (F VTP L)                               

Policy

The Group holds  certain unl isted equity investments , which are class i fied as  financial  assets  at FVTPL. These investments  are
ini al ly recognised at their fa i r value. At the end of each repor ng period the fa ir value is  reassessed, with gains  or losses
being recognised in the income statement.

The valua ons are based on several  factors , including the share price from the latest funding round, recent financial
performance (where avai lable), discoun ng for l iquida on preference shares  held by other shareholders  and discoun ng
for convertible loan notes.

Analysis

The unl isted equity investments  held by Saatchinvest Ltd mainly relate to 18 (2021: 20) early-stage companies . The Group
also owns 10% of one UK  company, 59A Limited (via  Al ive & K icking Global  Limited). I n addi on, overseas  investments  are
owned by:

·     M&C Saatchi  I nterna onal  Holdings  BV, which owns a 10% shareholding in Austral ie SAS and a 0.76%
shareholding in Ses ión Tequi la  Holdings  Pty Ltd (Austral ia).

·     M&C Saatchi  Agency P ty Ltd (Austral ia), which also owns a 2.1% shareholding in Ses ión Tequi la  Holdings  P ty
Ltd.

·     M&C Saatchi  European Holdings  Limited, which owns a 10% shareholding in M&C Saatchi  Madrid SL (Spain).

 

W ith regards  to the early-stage non-cl ient investments , the most the Group has  invested in any one company over  me is
£0.7m and the least i s  £0.1m. The Group invests  in these companies  for long term return.

The activi ty in the year relating to the equity investments  held at FVTPL is  presented below:

2022 2021

£000 £000

At 1 January 15,183 11,410

Additions - 501
 

Disposals (918) (209)
 

Gain/loss  on disposal 1,168 -

Impairment (2,863) -

Revaluation upwards 3,016 4,255

Revaluation downwards (2,724) (722)

Reclass i fication to contingent cons ideration (note 13) (914) -

Foreign exchange 38 (52)

At 31 December 11,986 15,183
 

 

Other gains/(losses) in income statement  2022 2021

£000 £000

Revaluations 292

 

3,533

Gain/loss  on disposal 1,168 -

Impairment (2,863) -

Total (1,403)

 

3,533

 

I n 2022, there were no addi ons and the disposals  related to companies  in the Saatchinvest porTol io. £918k of cash was
received in respect of the disposals , which resulted in a  gain on disposal  of £1,168k. W ithin this , £779k related to the
disposal  of Dataseat, and as  part of this  disposal  there was an addi onal  amount of con ngent cons idera on recognised,
refer to note 13 for further detai l .

An impairment of £2,863k was recognised rela ng to the investment in StreetTeam SoRware Limited (Pol len). The £3,016k
revaluation upwards  and £2,705k of the revaluation downwards  relates  to the unl isted investments  held by Saatchinvest Ltd.
£1,741k of the revalua on upwards  relates  to P icasso Labs, I nc. and £1,484k of the revalua on downwards  relates  to
Citymapper Limited.

O ther revalua on movements  relate to investments  held by both the Austral ian bus iness  and M&C Saatchi  I nterna onal
Holdings  B.V. in Ses ión Tequi la  Holdings  Pty Ltd.

W ithin the value of £11,986k above, investments  with a  value of £6,082k have no price points  s ince 1 January 2021. The
absence of a  market transac on means the Group has  less  rel iable informa on on which to base i ts  es mate of fa i r value,
as  in many cases  there is  l imited quan ta ve financial  informa on avai lable as  the Group is  a  smal l  minori ty shareholder
in early stage bus inesses.  There is  a  greater degree of judgement and exposure to future movements  in fa i r value upwards



in early stage bus inesses.  There is  a  greater degree of judgement and exposure to future movements  in fa i r value upwards
and downwards  on these investments  in par cular, as  i s  evident in the case of some of the 2022 downwards  revalua ons,
85% of which result from fair value movements  on 2 investment holdings.

I n 2021 there were addi ons of £501k, within this  £420k relates  to a  10% shareholding in an unl isted investment, Austral ie
SAS, acquired as  part of a  share for share exchange and the remainder related to addi ons of £81k by Saatchinvest Ltd. I n
2021, the £209k disposal  was  of a  company in the Saatchinvest porTol io and i t resulted in neither a  gain nor a  loss  on
disposal .

The Group's  10% shareholdings  in M&C Saatchi  Madrid SL and 59A Limited are a l l  valued at ni l .

2 0 . Trad e an d  o th er rec eiv ab les          

Policy

Trade receivables
Trade receivables  are amounts  due from customers  for goods sold or services  performed in the ordinary course of bus iness .
These financial  assets  give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments  of principal  and interest' on the principal  amount
outstanding. They are general ly due for se9lement within 30 - 90 days  and therefore are a l l  class ified as  current. Trade
receivables  are recognised ini al ly at the amount of cons idera on that i s  uncondi onal . The Group holds  trade receivables
with the objec ve to col lect the contractual  cash flows and therefore measures  them subsequently at amor sed cost us ing
the effective interest method.

Impairment - Expected credit losses
The Group appl ies  the I F RS 9 s impl ified approach to measuring expected credit losses  which uses  a  l i fe me expected loss
al lowance ('EC L') for a l l  trade receivables  and contract assets . To calculate the l i fe me EC L the Group has  establ ished a
provis ion matrix that i s  based on i ts  historical  credit loss  experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors  specific to the
debtors  and economic environments  in which the Group operates .

2022 2021
£000 £000

Trade receivables 97,431 86,302
Loss  a l lowance (1,829) (877)
Net trade receivables 95,602 85,425
Prepayments 4,890 2,664
Amounts  due from associates 38 123
VAT and sales  tax recoverable 167 52
Other receivables* 31,370 44,477
Total trade and other receivables 132,067 132,741
*Other receivables comprises accrued income of £12.7m (31 December 2021: £13.9m), which is considered to cons tute trade receivables as defined in IFRS 15 on the basis its
collectability is subject only to the passage of  me, as well as contract assets of £2.2m (31 December 2021 £2.4m), unbilled media receivables balances of £12.3m (31 December 2021:
£23.3m)  and other amounts receivable of £4.3m (31 December 2021: £4.9m). There is no additional ECL recorded in relation to these amounts.

Set out below is  the movement in the loss  a l lowance (which includes  provis ion for expected credit losses) of trade
receivables  and contract assets .

2022 2021
£000 £000

As at 1 January (877) (677)
Release / (increase) for expected losses  during the year 96 (40)
Movement in forward looking provis ion for speci fic bad debts :
- Charge during the year (1,469) (375)
- Released during the year 421 190
- Uti l i sation of provis ion 0 25
Year-end provision (1,829) (877)
The information about credit exposures  is  disclosed in note 30. 

2 1 . Trad e an d  o th er          p ay ab les  

Policy
Trade and other l iabi l i es  are non-interest bearing and are stated at their amor sed cost subsequent to ini al  recogni on
at their fa i r value, which is  cons idered to be equivalent to their carrying amount due to their short-term nature.

2022 2021
£000 £000

Trade creditors 50,437 36,578
Contract l iabi l i ties 20,502 18,939
Sales  taxation and socia l  securi ty payables 3,495 6,059
Accruals 67,601 75,466
Other payables 13,512 17,007
Total trade and other payables 155,547 154,049
 

Settlement of trade and other payables  is  in accordance with the terms of trade establ ished with the Group's  local  suppl iers .

2 2 . P ro v i s io n s           

Policy
P rovis ions  are recognised when the Group has  a  present legal  or construc ve obl iga on aris ing as  a  result of past events
and where i t i s  more l ikely than not an ouTlow of resources  wi l l  be required to se9le the obl iga on and the amount can be
rel iably es mated. P rovis ions  are measured at management's  best es mate of the expenditure required to se9le the
obl igation at the balance sheet date.

The year-end provis ion of £1.1m (2021: £1.2m) comprises  of costs  rela ng to the tax l iabi l i es  in Kenya of £0.3m (2021:
£0.2m), and income protec on schemes of £0.5m (2021: £0.6m), and £0.3m (2021: £0.4m) in rela on to property
di lapidations.

2022 2021
£000 £000

At 1 January (1,193) (666)
Reclass i fication* - (346)
Charged to the income statement:



- Overseas  sales  taxation and socia l  securi ty l iabi l i ties (92) (16)
- Income protection provis ion (92) (165)
Uti l i sed or released in the year
- Lease di lapidations 21 -
- Release associated with the FCA investigation 300 -
At 31 December (1,056) (1,193)
*This relates to lease dilapida ons which were included within the lease liability at 31 December 2020 (£0.2m), refer to note 17, plus £0.1m included within other creditors at 31
December 2020.

As at the end of 2022 al l  amounts  recognised as  provis ions  were expected to be u l ised within 12 months  and are held as
current l iabi l i es. The Directors  do not an cipate that any of the above wi l l  have a materia l  adverse effect on the Group's
financial  pos ition or on the results  of i ts  operations.

2 3 . B o rro w in gs      

Policy
Loans  and overdraRs are recognised ini al ly at fa i r value, less  a9ributable transac on costs . Subsequently, loans  and
overdraRs are recorded at amor sed cost with interest charged to the income statement under the Effec ve I nterest Rate
(EI R) method. W here there is  a  s ignificant change to the future cash flows, the EI R is  reassessed with a  corresponding change
in the carrying amount of the amor sed cost. The change in the carrying amount is  recognised in profit or loss  as  income or
expense.

Interest payable is  included within accruals  as  a  current l iabi l i ty.

Analysis

Amounts due within one year
2022 2021

At 31 December £000 £000
Overdrafts* (4,271) (14,440)
Local  bank loans (159) (297)
 (4,430) (14,737)
*  These overdrafts  can be legal ly offset with other cash balances. However, they have not been netted off in accordance with

IAS32.42 as  there is  no intention to settle on a net bas is .

 

Amounts due after one year

2022 2021
At 31 December £000 £000
Local  bank loans (52) (293)
Secured bank loans (6,750) (19,528)
 (6,802) (19,821)

 

Secured bank loans
O n 31 May 2021, the Company entered into a  revolving mul currency faci l i ty agreement with Na onal  Westminster Bank P lc
and Barclays  Bank P LC for up to £47m (the "Faci l i ty"). The Faci l i ty includes  a  £2.5m overdraR and the abi l i ty to draw up to
£3.0m as  a  bonding faci l i ty, as  required. The Faci l i ty i s  provided on a three-year term with an op on to extend un l  the
fourth anniversary. At 31 December 2022, the Group had up to £47.0m (2021: £47.0m) of funds  avai lable under the Faci l i ty.

The Faci l i ty includes  two financial  covenants , which i f ei ther were to be breached would result in a  default of the agreement:

1. I nterest Cover - EB I T for the previous  12 months  must exceed 5  mes the net finance charge (external  debt
interest, excluding IFRS16 finance lease interest payments) for the previous  12 months.

2.    Leverage - total  indebtedness  at the period end must not exceed 3.5  mes EB I TDA for the previous  12 months
(adjusted for acquis i ons and disposals ). This  reduced to 3.0  mes from 31 March 2022, 2.5  mes from 30 June
2022, and reduces  to 2.0 times from 31 March 2023.

 

2022 2021

At 31 December £000 £000
Gross  secured bank loans (7,000) (20,000)
Capital ised finance costs 250 472
Total secured bank loans (6,750) (19,528)
 

Total  secured bank loans  are due as  fol lows:

2022 2021

At 31 December £000 £000
In one year or less , or on demand - -
In more than one year but not more than five years (6,750) (19,528)
 (6.750) (19,528)

 

Total  bank loans  and borrowings  used to calculate net cash are as  fol lows, I F RS 16 Leases  is  excluded from the calcula on
of net cash in accordance with the Group's  bank covenants:

 

Gross secured
bank loans

£000
Local bank loans

£000
Total bank loans*



£000 £000
At 31 December 2020 (27,271) (2,357)
Cash movements 7,608 -
Acquis i tions  - bus iness  combinations - (468)
Non-cash movements
- Foreign exchange (337) 35
- Other** - 2,200
At 31 December 2021 (20,000) (590)
Cash movements 13,000 410
Non-cash movements
- Foreign exchange - (32)
At 31 December 2022 (7,000) (212)

*  The borrowing used to calculate net cash.

**Other includes  the forgiveness  of the US Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loans.

 

2 4 . O th er n o n -c u rren t l i ab i l i t ies                 

2022 2021
31 December £000 £000

Employment benefi ts* 1,846 1,108
Long term bonuses 1,362 1,014
Other** 838 427
 4,046 2,549

*This  relates  to long term service leave in some loca ons, deferred contribu ons to pens ion schemes and long-term bonus

plans. I n addi on, a  termina on indemnity plan in I ta ly of £535k (2021: £547k), this  l iabi l i ty i s  for the 13th month salary

accrual  for a l l  I ta l ian employees  to be paid to them when they leave the Company, this  was  included in 'other' in 2021,

reclass i fied within the table for comparabi l i ty.

**The main i tems include a contractual  make good l iabi l i ty in relation to the Austral ia  office lease of £690k (2021: £116k).

 
2 5 . Eq u i ty  related  l iab i l i? es                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
                          

This  disclosure note summarises  information relating to a l l  share schemes disclosed in notes  13, 26 and 27.

I n the case of con ngent cons idera on (note 13) (value 2022 Ni l ), I F RS 9 minori ty shareholder put op on l iabi l i es  (note
26), and I F RS 2 put op on schemes (note 27), the Group has  a  choice to pay in cash or equity. The Board made the decis ion
during 2021 that put op ons would, from then on, be se9led in cash, where the Group has  cash resources  to do so. I n the
case of the LTI P  schemes, i t i s  the Board's  inten on that an Employee Benefits  Trust i s  set up to acquire the shares  and fulfil
these schemes us ing the acquired equity.

I n the table below, poten al  cash payments  are presented, based on the 2022 year-end share price of the Company of 151.0p
and the es mated future bus iness  performance for each bus iness  unit. The payments  are stated in the year at which the put
op on schemes first become exercisable. The forecasts  are based on the Group's  three-year plans, developed as  part of the
budget cycle, and assume al l  TS R targets  are fulfil led, and that equity is  bought by the Employee Benefits  Trust in the year of
ves ng at a  Company share price of 151.0p. The table a lso shows the amount of these poten al  cash payments  that has  been
recognised as  a  l iabi l i ty as  at 31 December 2022, with the % of the related employment services  not yet del ivered to the
Group at that date.

 

Total future expected liabilities as at 31 December 2022

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Potentially payable

Services not yet
delivered as at

31 Dec 2022
%*At Company share price of 151.0p

2023
£000

2024
£000

2025
£000

2026
£000

2027
£000

2028
£000

Total
£000

IFRS 9 put option schemes 2,584 - - 1,983 - - 4,567 16%
IFRS 2 put option schemes 14,914 2,470 373 949 924 740 20,370 7%
LTIPs - 2,071 2,881 - - - 4,952 72%

17,498 4,541 3,254 2,932 924 740 29,889
 

*Share based payments (Note 27) charge liability to income statement over period of vesting i.e., as the employee fulfils their time obligation to earn the put option.
**LTIPs are accounted for as equity-settled, and thus do not create a balance sheet liability. The 2025 value of £2,881k relates to the LTIPs issued in December 2022, the new
awards have increased the total potentially payable in the table below, compared to the previous forecast issued with the interim financial statements.

 

P ut op on holders  are not required to exercise their op ons at the first opportunity. Many do not and prefer to remain
shareholders  in the subs idiary companies  they manage. As  a  result, some put op on holders  may not exercise their op ons
on the dates  estimated in the table above.

I f the Group in the future decides  to se9le in equity, then the amount of equity that wi l l  be provided is  equal  to the l iabi l i ty
divided by the share price.

 

Effect of a change in share price

 

The same data from the table above is  presented in the table below, but in this  analys is  the poten al  payments  are based on

a range of di fferent potentia l  future share prices .



a range of di fferent potentia l  future share prices .

 

 Potentially payable

Future Company share price
2023
£000

2024
£000

2025
£000

2026
£000

2027
£000

2028
£000 £000

At 151p £17,498 £4,541 £3,254 £2,932 £924 £740 £29,889
At 160p £18,324 £4,804 £3,453 £2,978 £979 £784 £31,322
At 175p £19,746 £5,241 £3,787 £3,102 £1,071 £858 £33,805
At 200p £22,323 £5,970 £4,342 £3,522 £1,224 £981 £38,362

At 225p £24,800 £6,598 £4,896 £3,941 £1,377 £1,103 £42,715

At 250p £27,226 £7,176 £5,451 £4,360 £1,530 £1,226 £46,969

At 300p £32,121 £8,332 £6,561 £5,199 £1,836 £1,471 £55,520

 

2 6 . M in o ri ty  sh areh o ld er p u t o p tio n  l iab i l i t ies  ( IF R S  9 )                              

Policy

See below but a lso Bas is  of Preparation note.

Some of the subs idiaries ' local  management have a put op on arrangement in place. The put op on arrangements  give these
employees  a  right to exchange their minori ty holdings  in the subs idiary into shares  in the Company or cash (at the Group's
choice).

These schemes are cons idered as  rewarding future bus iness  performance and, as  they are not condi onal  on the holder
being an employee of the bus iness , they are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9.

These instruments  are recognised in ful l  at the amor sed cost of the underlying award on the date of incep on, with both a
l iabi l i ty on the balance sheet and a corresponding amount within the minori ty interest put op on reserve being recognised.
At each period end, the amor sed cost of the put op on l iabi l i ty i s  calculated in accordance with the put op on agreement,
to determine a best es mate of the future value of the expected award. Resultant movements  in the amor sed cost of these
instruments  are charged to the income statement within finance income/expense.

The put op on l iabi l i ty wi l l  vary with both the Company's  share price and the subs idiary's  financial  performance. Current
l iabi l i es  are determined by the Company's  year-end share price and the historical  results  of the companies  where the
op on holders  can exercise within the next twelve months. Non-current l iabi l i es  are determined by the Company's  year-end
share price and the projected results  of the companies  where the op on holders  cannot exercise their op ons within the
next twelve months.

Upon exercise of an award by a  holder, the l iabi l i ty i s  extinguished and the associated minori ty interest put option reserve is
transferred to the non-control l ing interest acquired reserve.

Analysis

IFRS 9 put options  exercisable from year ended 31 December 2022:

Subsidiary Year

% of
subsidiaries'

shares
exercisable

   
M&C Saatchi  (Switzerland) SA 2023 21.0
M&C Saatchi  Merl in Ltd 2023 15.0
Santa Clara Participações  Ltda 2023 25.0
Santa Clara Participações  Ltda 2026 24.9
This  Fi lm Studio Pty Ltd 2023 30.0
 

I t i s  the Group's  op on to fulfil  these op ons in equity or cash and i t i s  the Group's  present inten on to fulfil  the op ons in
cash (i f avai lable). However, i f they are fulfil led in equity, the es mated number of the Company shares  that wi l l  be issued to
ful fi l  these options  at 151.0p is  2,553,018 shares  (2021: at 168.50p, 3,108,605 shares  would need to be issued).

2022 2021
Liability as at 31 December £000 £000
Amounts  fa l l ing due within one year (2,584) (3,238)
Amounts  fa l l ing due after one year, but less  than three years (1,272) -(2,000)
 (3,856) (5,238)
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

2022
 

2021
 

Movement in liability during the year £000 £000

At 1 January (5,238) (2,782)
Exchange di fference (1) 16
Exercises 2,497 424
Acquis i tions - (2,000)
Income statement charge due to:
- Change in profi t estimates (970) (399)
- Change in Company share price 406 (497)
- Amortisation of discount (550) -



- Amortisation of discount (550) -
Total income statement charge (Note 7) (1,114) (896)
At 31 December (3,856) (5,238)
 

 

Put options exercised in year 2022
£000

2021
£000

Paid in equity - 424
Paid in cash 2,497 -
Total 2,497 424
 

During the year the put op ons for 25.9% of Bohemia Group P ty Limited and 15.0% of Resolu on Des ign P ty Limited were
exercised, and the equity was  acquired by the Group.

2 7 . S h are-b ased  p ay men ts  ( IF R S  2 )               

Policy

See below but a lso Bas is  of Preparation note.

Local  management in some of the Group's  subs idiaries  (who are minori ty interests  of the Group) have the right to a  put
op on over the equity they hold in the relevant subs idiary. W here this  put op on is  dependent upon the holders ' con nued
employment by the relevant subs idiary, or where the holder received the op on as  a  result of employment with the relevant
subs idiary, these op ons are accounted for under I F RS 2 as  equity-se9led share-based payments  to employees  or as  cash-
se9led share-based payment schemes. These are redeemable, at the choice of the Group, ei ther in shares  of the Company or
by means of a  cash payment to the holder. Such schemes should be cons idered as  rewards  for future bus iness  performance,
which are conditional  on the holder being an employee of the bus iness .

Equity-settled share-based payment schemes
W here an award is  intended to be se9led in equity, then the fa ir value of the award is  calculated at the grant date of each
scheme based on the present Company's  share price and i ts  relevant mul ple. The fa ir value of the awards  is  calculated by
means of a  Monte Carlo model  with inputs  made in terms of the Company's  share price at the date of grant, risk free rate, the
historic vola l i ty of the share price, the dividend yield and the  me to vest. The Group es mates  the shares  that wi l l
ul mately vest, us ing assump ons over condi ons, such as  profitabi l i ty of the subs idiary to which the awards  relate. This
value is  recognised as  an expense in the income statement over the shorter of the ves ng period or the period of required
employment on a straight-l ine bas is , with a  corresponding increase in reserves.

I n the event a  put op on arrangement includes  a  bus iness  con nua on clause on departure, that element of the award at
issue is  treated as  vested and charged to the income statement at the grant date valua on, and no credit to the income
statement is  taken for i t in the future. Al l  the remaining award is  revalued annual ly for the non-market condi on
(profi tabi l i ty of the subs idiary) and al located to the income statement on a straight-l ine bas is .

Upon exercise of the awards, the nominal  value of the shares  issued is  credited to share capital  with the balance to share
premium.

Cash-settled share-based payment schemes
W hen an award is  intended to be se9led in cash, then a l iabi l i ty i s  recognised at incep on of the award, based on the
present Company's  share price and i ts  relevant mul ple. This  value is  recognised as  an expense in the income statement
from the date of award to the date i t i s  exercised, on a straight-l ine bas is , with a  corresponding increase in l iabi l i ties .

Conversion from equity-settled to cash-settled
Before 21 September 2021 the Group had se9led the op ons us ing equity, where there was a  choice to cash se9le or equity-
s e9l e. The Board made the decis ion that put op ons from that date would be se9led in cash, where cash resources  are
avai lable to do so. Up to 21 September 2021, the Group accounted for these put op ons as  equity-se9led. From 21 September
2021, the Group accounted for these put options  as  cash-settled.

The trans i on from equity-se9led to cash-se9led required a fa i r value assessment on the day of the modifica on and a
movement between equity and l iabi l i ties .

Where, for an unvested scheme that existed at 21 September 2021, the Company's  share price multiple (the market condition)
at the incep on of the op on is  higher than the current Company's  share price mul ple, then the difference is  charged to the
income statement.

The fol lowing table sets  out a  comparison between equity settlement and cash settlement of IFRS 2 put options:

 

 Equity-settled IFRS 2 scheme Cash-settled IFRS 2 scheme
Cost of the put option Booked to staff costs Booked to staff costs
Liabi l i ty of the put option Booked to equity (no impact on net assets) Booked to liabilities (reduces net assets)
Recognition of the cost Spread evenly between the date the put

op=on is issued and the date the put op=on
vests. No further costs after vesting date.

Spread evenly between the date the put op=on is
issued and the date the put op=on vests. Further
valua=on adjustments are made to the income
statement until the option is exercised.

Revaluation adjustments A djusted by changes in the profit of the
subsidiary only.

A djusted by changes in the profit of the
subsidiary and the relevant share price multiple.

Exercise of put option New Company shares issued to put op=on
holders.

Cash issued to put option holders.

 

Summary of schemes

The Group has  the fol lowing share-based payment schemes:

·     Put options  - from 21 September 2021 these put options  have been accounted for as  cash settled.

·     South African equity purchased with non-recourse loans  - some of the South African subs idiaries  have sold equity to staff with non-recourse loans  that are repaid out of
dividends and from the proceeds of sel l ing the equity to other employees, with the en ty that has  issued the equity ac ng as  an intermediary. The equity does  not have any put
rights , so there is  no obl iga on to acquire the equity, however the South African Rand 14,009k (2021 Rand 17,706k) debt lent to acquire the l iabi l i ty (ne9ed against the fa ir value
of the award) i s  at risk.

·     Cash awards  - these are long term cash schemes that were historical ly treated as  a  share-based scheme. At the end of 2021 one of the put op on award holders  res igned, caus ing
a one-off reversal  in the charge in the prior year.

·     2021 LTI P  awards  - on 28 September 2021 and 21 December 2021, the Group awarded equity-se9led LTI Ps  to senior execu ve managers .



·     2021 LTI P  awards  - on 28 September 2021 and 21 December 2021, the Group awarded equity-se9led LTI Ps  to senior execu ve managers .
Company's  shares , dependent on the achievement of certain future performance conditions:

o Group's  total  shareholder return (TS R) versus  the total  shareholder return (TS R) of the F TS E Smal l  Cap I ndex over the 3 years  from December 2020 to
December 2023 (70% of the award).

o Group's  ful l  year Headl ine PBT performance in 2023 versus  target (30% of the award).

·     2022 LTI P  awards  - on 12 December 2022, the Group awarded equity-se9led LTI Ps  to senior execu ve managers . This  scheme grants  a  future award of the Company's  shares ,
dependent on the achievement of certain future performance conditions:

o Group's  total  shareholder return (TS R) versus  the total  shareholder return (TS R) of the F TS E Smal l  Cap I ndex over the 3 years  from December 2021 to
December 2024 (50% of the award).

o Group's  ful l  year Headl ine PAT performance per share in 2023 versus  target (50% of the award).

·     Restric ve share awards  - the two cash awards  made to the previous  Chief F inancial  O fficer on his  recruitment were converted to restric ve share awards  on 28 September 2021,
based on the 45 day average share price to 28 May 2021 of 137.7p. O n departure of the previous  Chief F inancial  O fficer a  par al  payment was made in cash. At 31 December
2022 there are no restrictive awards  in existence.

 

For the LTIPs  i t i s  intended that an Employee Share Option Plan (Employee Benefi ts  Trust ) i s  set up to acquire the shares  to
ful fi l  these schemes in equity; thus  the schemes are accounted for as  equity settled. The inputs  to Monte Carlo models  used
to calculate the fa ir value of these share awards  granted during the year are as  fol lows:

  2 0 2 2  
LTIP

2 0 2 1  
LTIP

2 0 2 1  
LTIP

Issue date 12/12/2022 21/12/2021 28/09/2021

Vesting date 31/05/2025 21/12/2024 28/09/2024

Share price at grant £1.48 £1.63 £1.56

Expected volatility 76% 80% 81%

Risk free rate 3.32% 0.67% 0.51%

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Fair value of award per share £1.47 £1.62 £1.55

TS R  elemen t aga in st F TS E S mal l  C ap  in d ex:              
  Expected volatility 291% 147% 158%
  Fair value of award per share £0.63 £0.72 £0.67
 

Income statement charge
2022

Equity
£000

2022
Cash

£000

2022
Total
£000

2021
Equity

£000

2021
Cash

£000
Put options  to 21 September 2021 - equity settled - - - 1,283 -
Put options  from 22 September 2021  
  - imputed equity charge due to trans ition - - - 779 -
  - charge/(credit) s ince trans ition (see below) 580 432 1,012 - (797)
South Africa non-recourse loan scheme - 107 107 - (40)
Total  not affecting headl ine results  (Note 1) 580 539 1,119 2,062 (837)

Release of cash award due to leaver (Note 1) - - - - (2,598)
LTIPs 438 - 438 135 -
Restrictive share awards 211 - 211 38 -
Cash awards - 1,893 1,893 - 1,370

Total 1,229 2,432 3,661 2,235 (2,065)
 

 

Total put option liability

2022
Total
£000

2021
Total
£000

Put options  l iabi l i ty (IFRS 2) (18,992) (27,122)
Put options  l iabi l i ty (IFRS 9) (3,856) (5,238)
Total  put options  (Note 25) (22,848) (32,360)

  
Current - Minori ty shareholder put option l iabi l i ties (18,419) (20,788)
Non-current - Minori ty shareholder put option l iabi l i ties (4,429) (11,572)
Total (22,848) (32,360)
 

Cash-settled liability

The movement in the l iabi l i ty by scheme is  detai led below:

 
 

 

Put options

£000

South Africa
non-recourse
loan scheme

£000

Cash awards

£000

Total

£000
At 1 January 2021 - (545) (2,043) (2,588)
Equity-settled options  transferred to cash-settled awards (32,555) - - (32,555)
Offsetable debt 1,691 - - 1,691
Acquis i tions  (Note 12) (1,848) - - (1,848)



Acquis i tions  (Note 12) (1,848) - - (1,848)
(Charge) / credit to income statement
- Straight-l ine recognition (692) - (1,043) (1,735)
- Change in subs idiary profi t estimates (3,382) - (327) (3,709)
- Change in Company multiple 4,871 40 - 4,911
Total  income state (charge) / credit 797 40 (1,370) (533)
Reversal  of charge caused by employee res ignation - - 2,598 2,598
Settled 4,859 - 489 5,348
Foreign exchange (66) 37 -
At 31 December 2021 (27,122) (468) (326) (27,916)
(Charge) / credit to income statement
- Straight-l ine recognition (963) - (1,893) (2,856)
- Change in subs idiary profi t estimates (1,858) (231) - (2,089)
- Change in Company multiple 2,389 124 - 2,513
Total  income statement charge (432) (107) (1,893) (2,432)
Settled 8,553 - 1,054 9,607
Foreign exchange 9 (23) -
At 31 December 2022 (18,992) (598) (1,165) (20,755)

 

Cash consideration for non-controlling interest acquired and other options

2022
Total
£000

Put options  l iabi l i ty (IFRS 2) (9,607)
Put options  l iabi l i ty (IFRS 9) (2,497)
Total  cash cons ideration for non-control l ing interest acquired and other options (12,104)
 

Put Options

Vesting % Entity
subject to

the put
option

Clear Deutschland GmbH 2024 20.00%
Clear Deutschland GmbH 2026 20.00%
Clear Ideas  (Singapore) Ltd 2023 10.00%
Clear Ideas  Ltd - B1 shares Vested 5.00%
Clear Ideas  Ltd - B2 shares Vested 5.00%
Clear LA LLC Vested 12.00%
FCINQ SAS Vested 11.62%
Greenhouse Austral ia  Pty Ltd 2023 8.53%
Greenhouse Austral ia  Pty Ltd 2024 4.80%
Human Digi ta l  Ltd 2023 23.00%
Human Digi ta l  Ltd 2024 17.00%
LIDA NY LLP (MCD) Vested 24.50%
M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Limited Vested 20.00%
M&C Saatchi  AB Vested 30.00%
M&C Saatchi  Advertis ing GmbH 2023 4.10%
M&C Saatchi  Agency Pty Ltd Vested 10.00%
M&C Saatchi  Fluency Limited* 2026 7.50%
M&C Saatchi  Fluency Limited* 2027 10.00%
M&C Saatchi  Fluency Limited* 2028 2.50%
M&C Saatchi  Holdings  As ia  Pte Ltd (Indonesia) 2024 27.40%
M&C Saatchi  Holdings  As ia  Pte Ltd (Indonesia) 2026 22.50%
M&C Saatchi  Merl in Ltd 2023 15.00%
M&C Saatchi  Middle East Holdings  Ltd Vested 20.00%
M&C Saatchi  Share Inc Vested 20.00%
M&C Saatchi  Socia l  Ltd 2023 16.00%
M&C Saatchi  Spencer Hong Kong Limited 2024 30.00%
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment Ltd Vested 25.00%
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment NY LLP Vested 13.00%
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment NY LLP 2024 12.50%
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment NY LLP 2025 5.00%
M&C Saatchi  Sport & Entertainment Pty LTD Vested 10.00%
M&C Saatchi  Sports  & Entertainment GmbH Vested 7.00%
M&C Saatchi  Talk Ltd Vested 39.00%
M&C Saatchi  Talk Ltd 2023 10.00%
M&C Saatchi  World Services  LLP Vested 15.00%
M&C Saatchi , S.A. DE C.V. 2023 40.00%
Majori ty LLC 2024 8.00%
RE Team Pty Ltd Vested 13.00%
RE Worldwide UK Ltd Vested 43.20%
Scarecrow M&C Saatchi  Ltd Vested 49.00%
The Source (W1) LLP Vested 10.00%
The Source Ins ight Austral ia  Pty Ltd 2025 35.00%
Thread Innovation Ltd 2027 10.00%
Thread Innovation Ltd 2028 10.00%

*New scheme in year.

At any point in time, the valuation of certain put option schemes may be in dispute with the put option holders  who have

chal lenged the valuation of the schemes.  We bel ieve we have taken a prudent pos ition in assess ing the l iabi l i ties , and

therefore cons ider any adverse outturn to be unl ikely.  As  at 31 December 2022, the maximum aggregate l iabi l i ty that i s  not



accrued amounts  to [£2.4m]  (2021: £ni l ), which is  approximately 10% of the put option l iabi l i ty.

LTIP and Restrictive Shares

Shares issuable

During the year the Group also awarded LTIPs  and settled restrictive share awards.

The table below shows the number of shares  that the Company wi l l  i ssue at the Company's  share price at 31 December 2022
of 151.0p (2021: 168.5p) assuming al l  awards  under the LTIPs  are held to their vesting date and ful ly vest.

Number of Shares  
LTIP
'000

Restrictive
shares

'000
Total
'000

At 1 January 2022 1,927 799 2,726
Forfeited on departure (556) - (556)
Vested and reclass i fication to cash settled scheme on employee
departure - (799) (799)
Granted or amended 1,904 - 1,904

At 31 December 2022  3,275 - 3,275
 

Shares issuable used in these accounts

Note

2022
Number of

shares
'000

2022
Share price used

2021
Number of

shares
'000

2021
Share price

used
Per EPS calculation 1 905 163p 828 141.6p
Share based payments 27 3,275 147p-162p 2,726 155p-162p
 

The share-based payments  calcula on (note 27) uses  the number of shares  that could be issued at the first poss ible ves ng
date aRer the year. The EP S calcula on (note 1) uses  the average share price for the year, calcula ng the number of shares  to
be issued us ing i ts  formula value had i t been poss ible to exercise on the year-end date, and takes  a  deduc on for any
remaining uncharged share op on charge at start of year and the share of profits  that i s  a l locatable to the equity during the
year. W here the scheme has  been issued for part of the year (and is  not converted from an exis ng cash-based scheme) the
shares  are reduced by the propor on of the year that they are in issue. The EP S calcula on is  thus  a9emp ng to show the
di lu ve effect rather than the l ikely shares  that wi l l  be issued and is  income statement focused rather than the true future
position. 

2 8 . Issu ed  sh are c ap i ta l             (a l lo tted , c a l led  u p  an d  fu l l y  p a id )                   

Policy
O rdinary shares  are class ified as  equity. I ncremental  costs  a9ributable to the issuance of new shares  are shown in equity
as  a  deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

W here the Company reacquires  i ts  own equity instruments  (treasury shares), the cons idera on paid is  deducted from equity
attributable to the Company's  shareholders  and recognised within the treasury reserve.

Analysis

1p Ordinary
shares

Number of shares £000
At 31 December 2020 115,916,590 1,159

Acquis i tion of 40% of M&C Saatchi  (Hong Kong) Limited 3,027,860 30
Acquis i tion of 25.1% of Santa Clara Participações  Ltda 2,084,825 21
Acquis i tion of 19.9% of Li ttle Stories  SAS 475,730 5
Acquis i tion of 5% M&C Saatchi  Mobi le As ia  Paci fic PTE. Ltd 327,239 3
Shares  issued for cash 620,180 6
Payment of deferred cons ideration 291,011 3

At 31 December 2021 122,743,435 1,227
 

No issue of shares - -

At 31 December 2022 122,743,435 1,227
 

The Group holds  485,970 (2021: 485,970) of the above Company shares  in treasury.

 

2 9 . F a i r v a lu e measu remen t         

Policy

See also bas is  of preparation note.

Some of the Group's  financial  assets  and l iabi l i es , in addi on to certain non-financial  assets  and l iabi l i es , are held at
fa ir value.

The fa ir value of an asset or l iabi l i ty i s  the price that would be received from sel l ing the asset or paid to transfer a  l iabi l i ty
in an orderly transaction between market participants  at the balance sheet date.



in an orderly transaction between market participants  at the balance sheet date.

Both financial  and non-financial  assets  and l iabi l i es  measured at fa i r value in the balance sheet are grouped into three
levels  of a  fa i r value hierarchy. The three levels  are defined based on the observabi l i ty of s ignificant inputs  to the
measurement, as  fol lows:

- Level  1: quoted prices  (unadjusted) in active markets  for identical  assets  or l iabi l i ties ;
- Level  2: inputs  other than quoted prices  included within Level  1 that are observable for the asset or l iabi l i ty, ei ther

directly or indirectly; and
- Level  3: unobservable inputs  for the asset or l iabi l i ty.
 

The Group holds  both assets  and l iabi l i es  which are measured at fa i r value on a recurring bas is  and those which are
measured at fa i r value on a non-recurring bas is . I tems measured at fa i r value on a non-recurring bas is  typical ly relate to
non-financial  assets  aris ing as  a  result of bus iness  combina ons as  accounted for under the acquis i on method. I n this
regard, during the year the Group has  recognised addi ons to intangible assets  (brand names and customer l i s ts ) total l ing
£200k (2021: £3,819k). Refer to note 14 for ful l  detai ls .

I n addi on, the Group also calculates  the fa ir value of certain non-financial  assets  when there is  the need to conduct an
impairment review. These calcula ons also fa l l  within Level  3 of the I F RS 13 hierarchy and, where appl icable, are described
in note 14.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The fol lowing table shows the levels  within the hierarchy of financial  assets  and l iabi l i es  measured at fa i r value on a
recurring bas is  at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
At 31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets    
Equity investments  at FVTPL - - 11,986
Contingent cons ideration - - 914
Total - - 12,900

 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
At 31 December 2021 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets    
Equity investments  at FVTPL - - 15,183

 

The level  at which the financial  asset or l iabi l i ty i s  class ified is  determined based on the lowest level  of s ignificant input to
the fa ir value measurement.

The movements  in the fa ir value of the level  3 recurring financial  assets  and l iabi l i ties  are shown as  fol lows:

 
 

Equity instruments at
FVTPL
£000

At 1 January 2022 15,183
Disposals (918)
Gain on disposal 1,168
Revaluations 292
Impairment (2,863)
Currency movements 38
At 31 December 2022 12,900
 

Valuation and sensitivity to valuation
The Group's  finance team performs valua ons of financial  i tems for financial  repor ng purposes, including Level  3 fa i r
values. W here appropriate such valua ons are performed in consulta on with third-party valua on special is ts  for complex
calculations.

The equity instruments  at F VTP L relate to unl isted equity investments  as  detai led in note 19. Management bases  i ts  primary
assessment of their fa i r values  on the share price from the last funding round but a lso incorporates  discounts  depending on
performance, more senior shareholdings  held by other investors  and the poss ibi l i ty of future di lu on due to the presence of
conver ble loan notes. W ithin the value of £12,900k above, £6,082k have no price points  in the past 12 months.
F luctua ons in the share price would change the fa ir value of the investments  recognised at year-end as  fol lows assuming a
10% upl i ft or downwards  movement in the price:

Increase/
(decrease) in

fair value of
asset
2022

Increase/
(decrease) in

fair value of
asset
2021

Adjusted share price £000 £000

+10% 1,290 1,519
-10% (1,290) (1,519)
 

I n addi on, management cons iders  there to be a risk that the most recent purchase prices  are sens i ve to a  decis ion to sel l
the investments  to an unwi l l ing market. I f such a market existed, then discoun ng the investments  to reflect such risk could
impact the value as  shown below:

Decrease
in fair

value of
asset

Decrease
in fair

value of
asset

2022 2021
Risk adjusted sales price £000 £000
-30% sales  discount due to i l l iquid nature* (3,870) (4,556)
-12% risk discount for unwi l l ing market place** (1,084) (1,276)



-12% risk discount for unwi l l ing market place** (1,084) (1,276)
Value after discounts 7,946 9,353
*  If these i l l iquid securi ties  were to be sold then such a sale is  expected to yield between a 10% and 50% discount, so

sens itivi ty based on 30%.

**   Risk that i f the cash supply dries  up, some of the investments  with future growth prospects  wi l l  run out of cash requiring

a fi re sale, reflected by additional  risk discount of 12%.

3 0 . F in an c ia l  ri sk  man agemen t            

Principal financial instruments

The principal  financial  instruments  held by the Group, from which financial  instrument risk arises , include contract assets ,
trade and other receivables , cash and cash equivalents , contract l iabi l i es , trade and other payables , loans  and
borrowings, minori ty interest put op ons accounted under I F RS 9 as  l iabi l i es  and equity instruments  represen ng long
term investments  in non-l is ted enti ties .

The Group does  not typical ly use deriva ve financial  instruments  to hedge i ts  exposure to foreign exchange or interest rate
risks  aris ing from operational , financing and investment activi ties .

30.1 - General objective, policies and processes
The Board has  overal l  responsibi l i ty for the determina on of the Group's  and Company's  risk management objec ves  and
pol icies . Whi lst retaining ultimate responsibi l i ty for them, the Board has  delegated the authori ty for des igning and operating
processes  that ensure the effec ve implementa on of the objec ves  and pol icies  to the Group's  senior management of each
core bus iness  unit.

The overal l  objec ve of the Board is  to set pol icies  that seek to reduce risk as  far as  poss ible without unduly affec ng the
Group's  compe  veness  and flexibi l i ty of the global  bus inesses  of which i t i s  comprised. Further detai ls  regarding these
pol icies  are set out below.

30.2 - Market risk
Market risk arises  from the Group's  use of interest-bearing financial  instruments  and foreign currency cash holdings. I t i s
the risk that the fa ir value of future cash flows on i ts  debt finance and cash investments  wi l l  fluctuate because of changes  in
interest rates  (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates  (currency risk) and other price risk such as  equity price risk and
share price risk. F inancial  instruments  affected by market risk include loans  and borrowings, deposits , debt, equity
investments  and minori ty interest (MI) put options.

Exposure to market risk arises  in the normal  course of the Group's  bus iness .

30.3 - Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises  from transac ons and recognised assets  and l iabi l i es  and net investments  in foreign
opera ons. The Group's  general  opera ng pol icy historical ly has  been to conduct bus iness  in the currency of the local  area
in which bus inesses  of the Group are geographical ly located, thereby natural ly hedging the cons idera on resul ng from
cl ient work. Bus inesses  of the Group maintain bank accounts  in the currency of these transac ons solely for working capital
purposes. As  the Group has  grown there has  been an increase in services  rendered being exported from the UK  bus inesses  to
cl ients  who transact in non-GBP  currencies . The transac onal  risk aris ing from such exports  i s  mi gated in terms of the
structuring of the bi l l ing arrangements  and agreement to regular invoices  being remitted and promptly paid (<30 days).

The Group is  exposed to movements  in foreign currency exchange rates  in respect of the trans la on of net assets  and income
statements  of foreign subs idiaries  and equity accounted investments . The Group does  not hedge the trans la on effect of
exchange rate movements  on the income statements  or balance sheets  of foreign subs idiaries  and equity accounted
investments  as  i t regards  these as  long-term investments .

The es mated impact on foreign exchange gains  and losses  of a  +/- 10% movement in the exchange rate of the Group's
s igni ficant currencies  is  as  fol lows:

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
after tax

 2022 2022 2021 2021

Exchange rate £000 £000 £000 £000
USD +10% 848 727 362 214
USD -10% (771) (661) (330) (195)
AUD +10% 490 321 526 349
AUD -10% (446) (292) (478) (317)
 

The year-end and average exchange rates  to GBP for the s igni ficant currencies  are as  fol lows:

Year-End Rate Average Rate

Currency 2022 2021 2022 2021

USD 1.21 1.35 1.20 1.35
AUD 1.77 1.86 1.77 1.87
 

The Group assumes that currencies  wi l l  ei ther be freely conver ble, or the currency can be used in the local  market to pay
for goods and services , which the Group can sel l  to cl ients  in a  freely conver ble currency. W ithin the 2022 year-end cash
balances  the Group holds  £1,242k in Indian Rupees; £524k in Libyan Dinars ; and £3,725k in South African Rands. 

30.4 - Interest rate risk
The Group is  exposed to interest rate risk because i t holds  a  banking faci l i ty of up to £47m and a net overdraR faci l i ty of up
to £2.5m, both based on floating interest risks . The Group does  not cons ider this  risk to be s igni ficant.

The sens i vity analys is  below has  been determined based on the exposure to interest rates  for financial  instruments  held at
the balance sheet date. The analys is  i s  prepared assuming the amount of borrowings  outstanding at the balance sheet date
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50-bas is  point increase or decrease is  used when repor ng interest rate risk
internal ly to key management personnel  and represents  management's  assessment of the reasonably poss ible changes  in
interest rates .

I f interest rates  had been 50 bas is  points  higher/lower and al l  other variables  were held constant, the Group's  profit before
tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 would (decrease)/increase by £(35)k / £35k (2021: £(100)k / £100k). This  i s
principal ly attributable to the Group's  exposure to interest rates  on i ts  floating rate loan.

30.5 - Liquidity risk



30.5 - Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises  from the Group's  management of working capital  and the finance charges  and, when appropriate,
principal  repayments  on i ts  debt instruments . I t i s  the risk that the Group wi l l  encounter difficulty in mee ng i ts  financial
obl igations  as  and when they fa l l  due. The Group's  debt instruments  carry interest at SONIA + 3.0%.

The Group's  pol icy is  to ensure that i t wi l l  a lways  have sufficient cash to a l low i t to meet i ts  l iabi l i es  when they come due.
To achieve this  a im, the Group has  a  planning and budge ng process  in place to determine the funds  required to meet i ts
normal  opera ng requirements  on an ongoing bas is . The Group and Company ensures  that there are sufficient funds  to meet
i ts  short-term bus iness  requirements , taking into account i ts  an cipated cash flows from opera ons, i ts  holdings  of cash
and cash equivalent and proposed strategic investments .

The Board receives  current year cash flow projections  on a monthly bas is  as  wel l  as  information regarding cash balances. At
the end of the financial  year, these projec ons indicated that the Group had sufficient l iquid resources  to meet i ts
obl igations  under a l l  reasonably expected ci rcumstances.

The fol lowing table sets  out the contractual  maturi es  (represen ng undiscounted contractual  cash flows) of financial
l iabi l i ties :

Group

Up to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
At 31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables* (93,060) (34,996) (2,508) (976)
Lease l iabi l i ties (2,256) (6,770) (8,149) (21,220)
Loans  and borrowings (59) (100) (6,802) -
Overdrafts (4,271) - - -
IFRS 9 put options - (2,584) - (1,272)
Total (99,746) (44,350) (17,459) (23,468)
*  excludes  taxes  as  these are not cons idered financial  instruments  and contract l iabi l i ties  as  these are not financial

l iabi l i ties

 

Up to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
At 31 December 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables* (96,561) (25,359) (5,285) (1,846)
Lease l iabi l i ties (2,320) (6,960) (8,074) (19,342)
Loans  and borrowings - - - (19,528)
Overdrafts (14,440) - - -
IFRS 9 put options - (3,238) - (1,000)
Deferred and contingent cons ideration - (984) - -
Total (113,321) (36,541) (13,359) (41,716)
*  excludes  taxes  as  these are not cons idered financial  instruments  and contract l iabi l i ties  as  these are not financial

l iabi l i ties

 

Company

Up to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
At 31 December 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables (5,190) - -
Overdrafts (4,271) - -
Loans  and borrowings - - (6,750)
Total (9,461) - (6,750)
 

At 31 December 2021 Up to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables (3,551) (361) (292) (161)
Loans  and borrowings - - - (19,528)
Total (3,551) (361) (292) (19,689)
 

The Group breached no banking covenants  during the year.

30.6 - Credit risk
Credit risk i s  the risk of financial  loss  to the Group i f a  customer or counterparty to a  financial  instrument fa i ls  to meet i ts
contractual  obl igations.

The Group monitors  credit risk at both a local  and Group level . Credit terms are set and monitored at a  local  level  according
to local  bus iness  prac ces  and commercial  trading condi ons. The age of debt, and the levels  of accrued and deferred
income are reported regularly. Age profil ing is  monitored, both at local  customer level  and at consol idated en ty level . There
is  only local  exposure to debt from s ignificant global  cl ients . The Group con nues to review i ts  debt exposure to foreign
currency movements  and wi l l  review efficient strategies  to mitigate risk as  the Group's  overseas  debt increases.

Management determines  concentra ons of credit risk by reviewing amounts  due from customers  monthly. The only
s ignificant concentra ons of credit risk which are accepted are with mul na onal  blue chip (or their equivalent)
organisations  where credit risk i s  not cons idered an issue and the risk of default i s  cons idered low.

Impairment

The Group has  one principal  class  of assets  in scope for expected credit loss  test, trade receivables .

The Group appl ies  the I F RS 9 s impl ified approach to measuring expected credit losses  which uses  a  l i fe me expected loss
al lowance for a l l  trade receivables . 

 

The expected loss  rates  for each bus iness  are based on the payment profiles  of sales  at least over a  period of 24 months
before 31 December 2022 or 31 December 2021 respec vely and the corresponding historical  credit losses  experienced
within this  period. The historical  loss  rates  are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking informa on on
macroeconomic factors  affecting the abi l i ty of the customers  to settle the receivables .

The expected credit loss  a l lowance as  at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was determined as  fol lows for trade



The expected credit loss  a l lowance as  at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was determined as  fol lows for trade
receivables  under IFRS 15.

 

Trade receivables  

31 December 2022
Not past

due
0 - 30 days

past due

31 - 90
days past

due

91 - 120
days past

due
> 120 days

past due

Total

Expected loss  rate (%) 0.02% 0.01% 0.02% 0.51% 3.55%
Trade receivables  (£000's) 70,673 25,496 9,333 2,701 4,124 112,327
Calculated expected credit loss  provis ion (£000's) 11 3 2 14 146 176
Speci fic further loss  a l lowances  (£000's) - - - - 1,653 1,653
Total loss allowance (£000's) 11 3 2 14 1,799 1,829
 

Trade receivables  

31 December 2021
Not past

due
0 - 30 days

past due

31 - 90
days past

due

91 - 120
days past

due
> 120 days

past due

Total

Expected loss  rate (%) 0.02% 0.01% 0.02% 0.51% 3.55%
Trade receivables  (£000's) 72,941 19,200 6,107 956 3,302  102,506
Calculated expected credit loss  provis ion (£000's) 11 2 1 5 117  136
Speci fic further loss  a l lowances  (£000's) - - - - 741  741
Total loss allowance (£000's) 11 2 1 5 858  877
 

Under I F RS 9 F inancial  I nstruments , the expected credit loss  i s  the difference between asset's  gross  carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cashflows discounted at the asset's  original  effective interest rate.    

Contract assets  relate to work-in-progress , and as  the Group has  no experience of materia l  wri te offs in rela on to these
financial  assets , no expected credit loss  a l lowance is  recognised.

30.7 - Share price risk

As detai led in note 27, the Group has  used put op on awards  to incen vise certain local  key management (who are non
control l ing interest). The value of these awards  is  in part dependent upon the Company's  share price.

30.8 - Equity price risk
The Group's  non-l is ted equity investments  are suscep ble to market price risk aris ing from uncertain es  about future values
of the investment securi es. The Group manages  equity price risk through divers ifica on and by placing l imits  on individual
and total  equity investment securi es. Reports  on the equity porTol io are submi9ed to the Group's  senior management on a
regular bas is . The Board reviews and approves  a l l  equity investment decis ions. The bas is  of the fa ir value calcula ons and
the sens itivi ty of these calculations  to the key inputs  is  detai led in note 29.

30.9 - Capital management
The Group manages  i ts  capital  to ensure that en  es in the Group wi l l  be able to con nue as  a  going concern whi le
maximis ing the return to shareholders  through the op misa on of the debt and equity balance. Strong financial  capital
management is  an integral  element of the Directors ' s trategy to achieve the Group's  stated objec ves. The Directors  review
financial  capital  reports  on a regular bas is  and the Group finance func on does  so on a dai ly bas is  ensuring that the Group
has  adequate l iquidity. The Directors ' cons ideration of going concern is  detai led in the Directors ' Report.

The capital  s tructure of the Group cons ists  of debt, which includes  the borrowings  disclosed in note 23, cash and cash
equivalents  as  disclosed in the cash flow statement and equity a9ributable to equity holders  of the parent as  disclosed in
the Statement of Changes  in Equity.

3 1 . Gro u p  c o mp an ies        

Key

 
* This  subs idiary company is  exempt from the requirements  rela ng to the audit of individual  accounts  for the year

ended 31 December 2022 by vi rtue of Sec on 479A of the Companies  Act 2006. M&C Saatchi  plc (the "Company") wi l l
guarantee the debts  and l iabi l i es  of the subs idiary company in accordance with Sec on 479C of the Companies  Act
2006.

** En  es where al l  equity is  directly held by the Company, a l l  other subs idiary companies ' equity is  ei ther in part or
whol ly held via  subs idiaries  of the Company.

 

As at 31
December 2022

Country Company Number Registered Office
Address

Specialism Effective %
ownership
2022

United Kingdom
LIDA (UK) LLP* United

Kingdom
OC395890 36 Golden Square,

London, W1F 9EE
Advertis ing 100

LIDA Limited* United
Kingdom

03860916 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  (UK)
Limited*

United
Kingdom

03003693 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
Accelerator
Limited*

United
Kingdom

09660056 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
Export Limited*

United
Kingdom

03920028 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M & C Saatchi
Marketing Arts
Limited*

United
Kingdom

03357727 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  PR
International

United
Kingdom

08838406 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100



Limited*
M&C Saatchi  PR
Limited*

United
Kingdom

07280464 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  PR
UK LLP*

United
Kingdom

OC362334 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  Shop
Limited*

United
Kingdom

09660100 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  Talk
Limited*

United
Kingdom

04239240 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 51

The Source
(London) Limited*

United
Kingdom

07140265 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 100

The Source (W1)
LLP*

United
Kingdom

OC384624 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 90

This  Is  Noticed
Limited*

United
Kingdom

11843904 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Advertis ing 68.5

Clear Ideas
Consultancy LLP*

United
Kingdom

OC362532 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 90

Clear Ideas
Limited*

United
Kingdom

04529082 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 90

M&C Saatchi
Fluency Limited*

United
Kingdom

12853921 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 80

M&C Saatchi  Li fe
Limited*

United
Kingdom

14338008 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 100

Influence
Communications
Limited*

United
Kingdom

04917646 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 95

Re Worldwide Ltd* United
Kingdom

10503044 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 56.8

Thread Innovation
Limited*

United
Kingdom

13510974 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Consulting 80

Al ive & Kicking
Global  Limited*

United
Kingdom

11250736 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Dormant 100

Black & White
Strategy Limited*

United
Kingdom

11295145 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Dormant 100

H2R Research
Limited*

United
Kingdom

11668322 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Dormant 85

Human Digi ta l
Limited*

United
Kingdom

07510403 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Issues 60

M&C Saatchi
World Services
LLP*

United
Kingdom

OC364842 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Issues 85

M&C Saatchi  WS
.ORG Limited*

United
Kingdom

10898282 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Issues 85

Tricycle
Communications
Limited*

United
Kingdom

07643884 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Issues 85

M & C Saatchi
Network Limited*
& **

United
Kingdom

07844657 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Group Central
Costs

100

Saatchinvest Ltd* United
Kingdom

07498729 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Group Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
International
Holdings  B.V.

United
Kingdom

24295679 (FC024340) 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Group Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
European
Holdings  Limited*

United
Kingdom

05982868 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Group Central
Costs

96

M&C Saatchi
German Holdings
Limited*

United
Kingdom

06227163 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Group Central
Costs

100

M & C Saatchi
International
Limited*

United
Kingdom

03375635 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Local  Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
Middle East
Holdco Limited*

United
Kingdom

09374189 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Local  Central
Costs

80

M&C Saatchi
WMH Limited*

United
Kingdom

03457658 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Local  Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
Worldwide
Limited*

United
Kingdom

02999983 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Local  Central
Costs

100

FYND Media
Limited*

United
Kingdom

10104986 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Media 100

M&C Saatchi
Mobi le Limited*

United
Kingdom

05437661 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Media 100

M&C Saatchi
Merl in Limited*

United
Kingdom

03422630 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Pass ions 70

M&C Saatchi
Socia l  Limited* &

**

United
Kingdom

09110893 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Pass ions 84

M&C Saatchi  Sport
& Entertainment
Limited*

United
Kingdom

03306364 36 Golden Square,
London, W1F 9EE

Pass ions 75

Europe
M&C Saatchi Switzerland 660-0442009-4 Boulevard Des Advertis ing 76



M&C Saatchi
(Switzerland) SA

Switzerland 660-0442009-4 Boulevard Des
Promenades 8,
1227, Carouge,
Geneva,
Switzerland

Advertis ing 76

M&C Saatchi  AB Sweden 556902-1792 Skeppsbron 16,
11130, Stockholm,
Sweden

Advertis ing 70

M&C Saatchi
Advertis ing GmbH

Germany 95484 Munzstrasse 21-
23, 10178, Berl in,
Germany

Advertis ing 96

M&C Saatchi
Digi ta l  GmbH

Germany 137809 Munzstrasse 21-
23, 10178, Berl in,
Germany

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  Go!
AB

Sweden 559076-6076 Skeppsbron 16,
11130, Stockholm,
Sweden

Advertis ing 70

M&C Saatchi  PR
AB

Sweden 559103-4201 Skeppsbron 16,
11130, Stockholm,
Sweden

Advertis ing 70

M&C Saatchi  PR
S.r.L

Ita ly IT08977250961 V.Le Monte Nero
76, Mi lano, 20135,
Ita ly

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi  SpA Italy IT07039280966 V.Le Monte Nero
76, Mi lano, 20135,
Ita ly

Advertis ing 100

Clear Deutschland
GmbH

Germany 113523 C/O Wework,
Taunusanlage 8,
60329, Frankfurt
Am Main, Germany

Consulting 57

M&C Saatchi  Sport
& Entertainment
Benelux B.V.

Netherlands 860734560 Keizersgracht,
81015CN,
Amsterdam

Pass ions 100

M&C Saatchi
Sports  &
Entertainment
GmbH

Germany 142905 Munzstrasse 21-
23, 10178, Berl in,
Germany

Pass ions 93

Middle East and
Africa
Black & White
Customer Strategy
(Pty) Limited

South Africa 211/005859/07 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Advertis ing 50.1

Creative Spark
Interactive (Pty)
Limited**

South Africa 2010/016508/07 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Advertis ing 50.1

Dalmatian
Communications
(Pty) Limited**

South Africa 2015/396439/07 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Advertis ing 50.1

M&C Saatchi  Abel
(Pty) Limited

South Africa 2009/022172/07 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Advertis ing 50

M&C Saatchi
Africa (Pty)
Limited**

South Africa 2013/037719 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Advertis ing 50.1

M&C Saatchi  FZ
LLC

United Arab
Emirates

177 PO Box: 77932, Abu
Dhabi , United Arab
Emirates

Advertis ing 80

M&C Saatchi
Middle East FZ LLC

United Arab
Emirates

30670 M&C Saatchi ,
Penthouse,
Bui lding 1,
Twofour54, PO Box
77932, Abu Dhabi ,
United Arab
Emirates

Advertis ing 80

Razor Media (Pty)
Limited

South Africa 2017/177757/07 9 8th Street,
Houghton,
Johannesburg,
Gauteng, 2198,
South Africa

Advertis ing 49

M&C Saatchi
Bahrain W.L.L

Bahrain 74157 51,122,1605,316,
Manama Center

Dormant 100



Bahrain W.L.L Manama Center
M&C Saatchi
Connect (Pty)
Limited**

South Africa 2013/037737/07 Media Quarter, 5th

Floor, Corner,
Somerset And De
Smit Street, De
Waterkant, Cape
Town, South Africa

Media 50.1

Levergy Marketing
Agency (Pty)
Limited**

South Africa 2005/021589/07 9 8th Street,
Houghton,
Johannesburg,
Gauteng, 2198,
South Africa

Pass ions 70

Asia
Design Factory
Sdn Bhd

Malays ia 201001034805 No. 15B, 2nd Floor,
Ja lan Tengku
Ampuan, Zabedah
F9/F, Section 9,
40100 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul
Ehsan, Malays ia

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
Advertis ing
(Shanghai) Limited

China 91310000740556813A Room 248, Floor 2,
Unit 5, No.11,
Wanghang Road,
New Lingang Area,
China (Shanghai)
Pi lot Free Trade
Zone, China

Advertis ing 80

M&C Saatchi
(Hong Kong)
Limited

Hong Kong 509500 Rm 2610, 26/F
Prosperi ty,
Mi l lennia Plaza,
663 King's  Rd,
North Point, Hong
Kong

Advertis ing 80

M&C Saatchi
Spencer Hong
Kong Limited

Hong Kong 2661802 1st Floor, Catic
Plaza, No.8
Causeway Road,
Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Advertis ing 70

M&C Saatchi
Communications
Pvt Limited

India U74300DL2005PTC141682 Flat No.270-D,
Pocket C Mayur
Vihar Phase II, New
Delhi , 110091,
India

Advertis ing 94.8

Scarecrow M&C
Saatchi  Limited** 

India U22190MH2008PLC188548 2nd Floor, Kamani
Chambers  32
Ramjibhai  Kamani
Marg, Bal lard
Estate Mumbai ,
Mumbai  Ci ty, MH
400038 IN, India

Advertis ing 51

PT. MCS Saatchi
Indonesia

Indonesia 576/1/IU/PMA/2018 Dea Tower 1
Mezanine Floor, Jl .
Mega Kuningan
Kav.e4.3 No.1-2,
Kuningan Timur,
Setiabudi , Jakarta
Selatan, 12920,
Indonesia

Advertis ing 50.1

M&C Saatchi  (M)
Sdn Bhd

Malays ia 606116-D No.15b, 2nd Floor,
Ja lan Tengku
Ampuan, Zabedah
F9/F, Section 9,
40100 Shah Alam,
Selangor, Malays ia

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
Source (M) SDN
BHD

Malays ia 1313653-D No.15b, 2nd Floor,
Ja lan Tengku
Ampuan, Zabedah
F9/F, Section 9,
40100 Shah Alam,
Selangor, Malays ia

Advertis ing 100

Watermelon
Production Sdn
Bhd

Malays ia 1083441 -M No.15b, 2nd Floor,
Ja lan Tengku
Ampuan, Zabedah
F9/F, Section 9,
40100 Shah Alam,
Selangor, Malays ia

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
World Services
Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Pakistan 0081911 48m, Block 6,
P.Ec.H.S, Karachi ,
Pakistan

Issues 43

M&C Saatchi  (S)
Pte Limited

Singapore 199504816C 59 Mohamed
Sultan Road, #02-
08, Sultan-Link,
Singapore

Advertis ing 100

Clear Ideas
(Singapore) Pte

Singapore 201020335R 59 Mohamed
Sultan Road, #02-

Consulting 86



(Singapore) Pte
Limited

Sultan Road, #02-
08, Sultan-Link,
Singapore

Clear As ia  Limited Hong Kong 1289028 6th Floor,
Alexandra House,
18 Chater Road,
Central , Hong Kong

Dormant 95

Re HK Limited Hong Kong 2699219 Rm 2610, 26/F
Prosperi ty,
Mi l lennia Plaza,
663 King's  Rd,
North Point, Hong
Kong

Dormant 100

M&C Saatchi
World Services
(Singapore) Pte
Limited

Singapore 202104508W 59 Mohamed
Sultan Road, #02-
08, Sultan-Link,
Singapore

Issues 85

M&C Saatchi  As ia
Limited

Hong Kong 1959819 Rm 2610, 26/F
Prosperi ty,
Mi l lennia Plaza,
663 King's  Rd,
North Point, Hong
Kong

Local  Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
Holdings  As ia  Pte
Limited

Singapore 20172 5519K 1 Coleman Street,
#05-06a, The
Adelphi , 179803
Singapore

Local  Central
Costs

50.1

M&C Saatchi
Mobi le India LLP

India AAK-8869 141b First Floor, Cl
House Shahpur Jat,
New Delhi , 110049,
India

Media 100

M&C Saatchi
Mobi le As ia
Paci fic Pte Limited

Singapore 201410399M 59 Mohamed
Sultan Road, #02-
08, Sultan-Link,
Singapore

Media 100

Australia
1440 Agency Pty
Limited

Austral ia 100 473 363 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Bel lwether Global
Pty Limited

Austral ia 114 615 226 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Brands In Space
Pty Limited

Austral ia 129 800 639 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Elastic
Productions  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 635 737 861 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Go Studios  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 092 941 878 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Greenhouse
Austral ia  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 629 584 121 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 78

Hidden Characters
Pty Limited

Austral ia 108 886 291 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 85.5

LIDA Austral ia  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 125 908 009 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

M&C Saatchi
Direct Pty Limited

Austral ia 072 221 811 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

M&C Saatchi
Melbourne Pty
Limited

Austral ia 004 777 379 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 89.9

M&C Saatchi
Sydney Pty Limited

Austral ia 637 963 323 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Park Avenue PR
Pty Limited

Austral ia 604 298 071 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Resolution Des ign
Pty Limited

Austral ia 621 985 288 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 90

Saatchi  Ventures
Pty Limited

Austral ia 614 007 957 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 54

The Source Ins ight
Austral ia  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 618 841 928 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 58.5

This  Fi lm Studio
Pty Limited

Austral ia 624 003 541 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 63

Tricky Jigsaw Pty
Limited

Austral ia 069 431 054 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 88



2000, Austral ia
Ugly Sydney Pty
Limited

Austral ia 618 242 710 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Advertis ing 67.5

Re Team Pty
Limited

Austral ia 105 887 321 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Consulting 78.8

Yes  Agency Pty
Limited

Austral ia 621 425 143 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Consulting 78.8

eMCSaatchi  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 089 856 093 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Dormant 90

World Services
(Austral ia) Pty
Limited

Austral ia 629 191 420 C/O Walker
Wayland Services
Pty Ltd, Suite 11.01,
Leve 11, 60
Castlereagh St,
Sydney NSW,
Austral ia

Issues 85

M&C Saatchi
Agency Pty Limited

Austral ia 069 431 054 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Local  Central
Costs

90

M&C Saatchi  As ia
Pac Holdings  Pty
Limited

Austral ia 097 299 020 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Local  Central
Costs

100

Bohemia Group
Pty Limited

Austral ia 154 100 562 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Media 90

M&C Saatchi  Sport
& Entertainment
Pty Limited

Austral ia 139 568 102 99 Macquarie
Street, Sydney, NSW
2000, Austral ia

Pass ions 81

Americas
Agência Digi ta l
Zeroacem Ltda

Brazi l NIRE-3522979148 Rua Wisard, 305,
Vi la  Madalena, 3
Andar-Con, Sao
Paolo, 05434-080,
Brazi l

Advertis ing 46

CSZ Comunicação
Ltda

Brazi l 03.910.644/0001-05 Rua Wisard, 305,
Vi la  Madalena, 3
Andar-Con, Sao
Paolo, 05434-080,
Brazi l

Advertis ing 50.1

Li ly Participações
Ltda

Brazi l 21.188.539/0001-96 Avenida Brigadeiro
Faria  Lima, 1355,
Jardim Paul istano
16 Andar, Sal , Sao
Paulo, 01452-919,
Brazi l

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi
Bras i l
Participações  Ltda

Brazi l 10.570.593/0001-85 Rua Wisard, 305,
Vi la  Madalena, 3
Andar-Con, Sao
Paolo, 05434-080,
Brazi l

Advertis ing 100

M&C Saatchi , S.A.
DE. C.V

Mexico N-2017052183 Darwin 74, Piso 1,
Miguel  Hidalgo,
11590 Ciudad de
México, CDMX,
Mexico

Advertis ing 60

Majori ty LLC USA 5445173 874 Walker Rd Ste
C, Dover, Kent,
Delaware 19904
USA

Advertis ing 92.32

Santa Clara
Participações  Ltda

Brazi l 09.349.720/0001-31 Rua Wisard, 305,
Vi la  Madalena, 3
Andar-Con, Sao
Paolo, 05434-080,
Brazi l

Advertis ing 50.1

Shepardson Stern
+ Kaminsky LLP

USA 4656653 80 State Street,
Albany, 12207-
2543, New York,
USA

Advertis ing 100

Clear USA LLC USA 20-8599548 138 West 25th

Street, Floor 5, New
York, Ny 10001,
USA

Consulting 95

LIDA NY LLP (MCD) USA 4902983 138 West 25th

Street, Floor 5, New
York, NY 10001,
USA

Consulting 75.5

Clear LA LLC USA 6241713 2711 Centervi l le
Road, Suite 400,
Wi lmington,
Delaware, 19808,
USA

Dormant 95

Clear NY LLP USA 30-0891764 1209 Orange Street Dormant 95



Clear NY LLP USA 30-0891764 1209 Orange Street
Wilmington,
Delaware 19801,
USA

Dormant 95

LIDA USA LLP USA 6333479 251 Li ttle Fal ls
Drive, Wi lmington,
New Castle,
19808Delaware,
USA

Dormant 100

M&C Saatchi  NY
LLP

USA 45-4683918 874 Walker Rd Ste
C, Dover, Kent,
Delaware 19904,
USA

Dormant 95

M&C Saatchi  PR
LLP

USA 27-1665526 1740 Broadway,
New York, 10019,
USA

Dormant 100

M&C Saatchi
Share Inc.

USA 5580330 160 Greentree Dr
Ste 101, Dover,
Kent, Delaware,
19904 USA

Dormant 80

World Services  US
Inc.

USA C2543767 88 Pine Street, 30th

Floor
New York NY 10005
United States

Issues 100

M&C Saatchi
Agency Inc.

USA 13-3839670 304 East 45th

Street, New York,
New York, 10017,
USA

Local  Central
Costs

100

M&C Saatchi
Mobi le LLC

USA 45-3638296 2032 Broadway,
Santa Monica
Cal i fornia, 90404
USA

Media 100

M&C Saatchi  Sport
& Entertainment
LA LLC

USA 6369786 874 Walker Rd Ste
C, Dover, Kent,
Delaware 19904
USA

Pass ions 90

M&C Saatchi  Sport
& Entertainment
NY LLP

USA 46-5182795 160 Greentree Dr
Ste 101, Dover,
Kent, Delaware,
19904 USA

Pass ions 69.5

 

Associate Entities
 

En  es in which the Group holds  less  than 50% of the share capital  and which are accounted for as  Associates  (Note 15). Al l
subs idiary companies  which the Group controls  in l ine with the requirements  of I F RS 10 have been included in the
consol idated financial  s tatements .

 

As at 31
December 2022

Country Company Number Registered
Office Address

Specialism Effective %
ownership
2022

Love Frankie
Limited

Thai land 105557000000 571 Rsu Tower,
10th Floor, Soi
Sukhumvit 31,
Sukhumvit
Road, Wattana
District,
Bangkok,
Thai land

Advertis ing 21

M&C Saatchi  SAL Lebanon 1010949 Quantum
Tower, Charles
Malek Avenue,
St Nicolas ,
Beirut, Lebanon

Advertis ing 10

M&C Saatchi  Li ttle
Stories  SAS

France 449386944 32 Rue Notre
Dame Des
Victoires ,
75002 Paris ,
France

Advertis ing 25.77

Cometis  S.a.r.l France 384769592 14 Rue Meslay,
75003 Paris ,
France

Advertis ing 49

M&C Saatchi
Limited

Japan 0110-01-060760 1-26-1 Ebisu-
Nishi , Shibuya-
Ku, Tokyo 150-
0021, Japan

Advertis ing 10

February
Communications
Pvt Limited

India U74999DL2012PTC233245 141b First
Floor, Cl  House
Shahpur Jat,
New Delhi ,
110049, India

Advertis ing 20

 

 



 

3 2 . R elated  p arty  tran sac tio n s          

Key management remuneration
Key management remuneration is  disclosed in note 5.

 

Other related parties
During the year, the Group made purchases  of £84k (2021: £418k) from i ts  associates . At 31 December 2022, there was £31k
due to associates  in respect of these transactions  (2021: £35k).

During the year, £127k (2021: £420k) of fees  were charged by Group companies  to associates . At 31 December 2022,
associates  owed Group companies  £38k (2021: £123k).

 

3 3 . C o mmitmen ts    

W ith the introduc on of I F RS 16 Leases  in 2019, a l l  of the Group's  commitments  are shown on the balance sheet except for
those below:

Capital commitments
At the year-end the Group had £56k committed costs  (2021: £Ni l ) to acquire property plant and equipment.  

Other commitments
O ther than the normal  contractual  commitments  to staff and the commitment to complete profitable projects  for cl ients , the
Group does  not have any other materia l  commitments  which are not reflected on the balance sheet.

 

3 4 . P o st-b a lan c e sh eet ev en ts          

As part of our s impl ifica on strategy, the Group con nued to close down smal l  en  es including C lear Deutschland GmbH,
M&C Saatchi  Share Inc and Black & White Strategy Limited.

The Directors  are not aware of any other events  s ince the end of the financial  year that have had, or may have, a  s ignificant
impact on the Group's  operations, the results  of those operations, or the state of affa irs  of the Group in future years .

3 5 . O th er ac c o u n tin g  p o l i c ies               

Reserves
Equity comprises  the fol lowing:

Share capital
Represents  the nominal  value of equity shares  in issue.

Share premium
Represents  the excess  over nominal  value of the fa ir value of cons ideration received for equity shares , net of i ssuance costs .

Other reserves
Merger reserve
Represents  the premium paid for shares  above the nominal  value of share capital , caused by the acquis i on of more than
90% of a  subs idiaries ' shares . The merger reserve is  released to retained earnings  when there is  a  disposal , impairment
charge or amortisation charge posted in respect of the investment that created i t.

Treasury reserve
Represents  the amount paid to acquire the Company's  own shares  for future use.

Minority interest put option reserve
Represents  the ini al  fa i r value of the I F RS 9 put op on l iabi l i es  at crea on. W hen the put op on is  exercised, the related
amount in this  reserve is  taken to the non-control l ing interest acquired reserve.

Non-controlling interest acquired reserve
From 1 January 2010, a  non-control l ing interest acquired reserve has  been used when the Group acquires  an increased stake
in a  subs idiary. I t represents  the ei ther a) the minori ty interest put op on reserve transferred less  the book value of the
minority interest acquired (where the acquis i on is  due to an I F RS 9 put op on), or b) the cons idera on paid less  the book
value of the minori ty interest acquired. I f the equity stake in the subs idiary is  subsequently sold, impaired or disposed of,
then the related balance from this  reserve wi l l  be transferred to retained earnings.

Foreign exchange reserve
For overseas  opera ons, income statement results  are trans lated at the annual  average rate of exchange and balance sheets
are trans lated at the clos ing rate of exchange. The annual  average rate of exchange approximates  to the rate on the date that
the transactions  occurred. Exchange di fferences  aris ing from the trans lation of foreign subs idiaries  are taken to this  reserve.
Such trans lation di fferences  wi l l  be recognised as  income or expense in the period in which the operation is  disposed of.

Retained earnings
Represents  the cumulative gains  and losses  recognised in the income statement.

3 6 . New  an d  rev i sed  s tan d ard s  i ssu ed  b u t n o t y et ef fec tiv e                        

In the current year, the fol lowing Standards  and Interpretations  became effective:

·     Amendments  to IAS 37 - Onerous  Contracts : Cost of Ful fi l l ing a  Contract

·     Amendments  to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

·     AI P  (2018-2020 cycle): I F RS 9 F inancial  I nstruments  - Fees  in the '10 per cent' Test for Derecogni on of
Financial  Liabi l i ties

·     Amendments  to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual  Framework

 

The above amendments  do not have a materia l  di fference on the Group's  accounts .

At the date of authorisa on of these financial  s tatements , the Group has  not appl ied the fol lowing new and revised I F RS
Standards  that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments  to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets  between an
Investor and i ts  Associate or Joint Venture



Investor and i ts  Associate or Joint Venture

Applying IFRS 9 "Financial  Instruments" with IFRS 4 'Insurance
Contracts ' (Amendments  to IFRS 4)

IFRS Insurance

Amendments  to IFRS 17 Changes  to international  insurance accounting

Class i fication of Liabi l i ties  as  Current or Non-Current
(Amendments  to IAS 1)

Appl ication of cons istency

Defini tion of Accounting Estimate (Amendments  to IAS 8) Distinguishing between accounting pol icies  and
estimates

Disclosure of Accounting Pol icies  (Amendments  to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practise Statement 2)

Appl ication of Materia l i ty

Deferred Tax - Amendments  to IAS 12 Income Taxes Recognis ing deferred tax on leases

 

The Directors  do not expect that the adop on of the Standards  l i s ted above wi l l  have a materia l  impact on the financial
statements  of the Group in future periods.
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